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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Phison Electronics Corp.

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Phiectronics Corp. (the “Corporation”) which
comprises the balance sheets as of December 38 a6d 2017, and the statements of
comprehensive income, statements of changes ityemyuil statements of cash flows for the years
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the noties fmancial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statetaegresent fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Corporation as of Decemi3d, 2018 and 2017, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the years thade@ in accordance with the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports bguBities Issuers.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Régaus Governing Auditing and Attestation
of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accanms$ and auditing standards generally accepted
in the Republic of China. Our responsibilities untteose standards are further described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Rincial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Corporation in accordance wiik Worm of Professional Ethics for Certified
Public Accountant of the Republic of China, andhawe fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements. We belibgé the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis far apinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in oofegsional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements for the yeaded December 31, 2018. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the fir@ngtatements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a sepaigiteéan on these matters.



The key audit matter for the Corporation’s finahatatements for the year ended December 31,
2018 is stated as follows:

Sales Revenue Recognition

Auditing standards generally accepted in the RepublChina presumes there is a risk of fraud in
the recognition of sales revenue. Management nidicially inflate sales revenue due to pressure
in meeting the sales target. The Corporation’s acusts are numerous and diverse, and the
operating revenue of the Corporation for the yeaded December 31, 2018 amounted to
NT$40,804,130 thousand. Therefore, the possibititysales from transactions with unusual
customers, validity of the transactions and whettiey fulfiled the criteria for revenue
recognition may result in a significant impact twe financial statements. Thus, the recognition of
sales revenue has been identified as a key auttiémma

Our main audit procedures performed in responsigiganatter, included the following:

1. We understood and tested the process of salenue recognition and the design and
implementation of the relevant internal controls.

2. We sampled the original sales orders, shippoguohents, export declarations and examined
the process for the payment receipts to confirmttha sales revenue have met the conditions
of revenue recognition.

3. We checked if there were any instances of sanelbus purchases from and sales to the same
entity. If such situations exist, we further assdsthe background of the entity and the goods
purchased and sold in order to evaluate the rehfaress of the transactions and to confirm
whether there were instances of repeated purclaskesales.

Emphasis of Matter

As stated in Note 33 to the accompanying finanstatements, the Corporation has been under
statutory investigation since August 5, 2016 foialleged violation of the Securities and Exchange
Act, and the investigation was conducted by thev@iai Hsinchu District Prosecutors Office and
was concluded on August 31, 2017. According topttess release announcement from the Taiwan
Hsinchu District Prosecutors Office on Septembe2(1,7, under the Securities and Exchange Act
and related provisions in the Criminal Code of Republic of China, the prosecutor charged the
chairman of the Corporation and others culminatmgither deferred prosecution or dropping the
claim for further prosecution. The Taiwan Hsinchistbict Prosecutors Office ex officio sent the
ruling to the Taiwan High Prosecutors Office focamsideration. As of November 18, 2017, in
regard to the partial revocation and partial disali€harge by the Taiwan High Prosecutors Office
against the chairman of the Corporation and otlibescase is under re-investigation. As such, our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged thi Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation airdpfesentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Pagipa of Financial Reports by Securities

Issuers, and for such internal control as managerdetermines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are freenfmaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.



In preparing the financial statements, managensen¢sponsible for assessing the Corporation’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosiag,applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accountingssninanagement either intends to liquidate the
Corporation or to cease operations, or has nost&adilternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, including the supary, are responsible for overseeing the
Corporation’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurdymdg avhether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether dueatad or error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assuranaéiigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with the tagdistandards generally accepted in the
Republic of China will always detect a material stegement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered nadtdriindividually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the econontisides of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the audistapdards generally accepted in the Republic of
China, we exercise professional judgment and maimeofessional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstant of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procesluesponsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriatprovide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resultingfficaud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgerygintional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control vaig¢ to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstarimg not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporationtgiinal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accountingipsliesed and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by managemen

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of managemersts of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence oltaimeether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast agmt doubt on the Corporation’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude thagterial uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditors’ report to thiated disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify quinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our arslitreport. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Corporation to ceasenbeee as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure @mtent of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial stat¢ésnepresent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidenceardgg the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Corporation t@m@ss an opinion on the financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervisiod performance of the audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.



We communicate with those charged with governaagarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant afididings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our dud

We also provide those charged with governance wsitltements that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding indeperglerand to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasortablthought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those chargeéld gavernance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of tilancial statements for the year ended December
31, 2018 and are therefore the key audit matteesdéécribe these matters in our auditors’ report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclesaibout the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should@&@ommunicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonabéxppected to outweigh the public interest

benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resultingisnindependent auditors’ report are Hsin-Wei
Tai and Yu-Wei Fan.

Deloitte & Touche
Taipei, Taiwan
Republic of China

March 21, 2019

Notice to Readers

The accompanying financial statements are intendely to present the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows in accordamagéh accounting principles and practices
generally accepted in the Republic of China andthose of any other jurisdictions. The standards,
procedures and practices to audit such financiatesnents are those generally applied in the
Republic of China.

For the convenience of readers, the independentastdreport and the accompanying financial
statements have been translated into English fiwrotiginal Chinese version prepared and used
in the Republic of China. If there is any conflo#tween the English version and the original
Chinese version or any difference in the interptietaof the two versions, the Chinese-language
independent auditors’ report and financial statetseshall prevail.



PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP.

BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 4 and 6)
Financial assets at fair value through profit @sl@FVTPL) - current (Notes 4, 7 and 27)
Financial assets at amortized cost - current (Nét&sd 9)
Debt investments with no active market - currerdté 4, 10 and 30)
Notes and accounts receivable
Non-related parties (Notes 4 and
Related parties (Notes 4, 11 and 28)
Other receivables (Note 1
Inventories (Notes 4 and :
Prepayments
Other current ass¢

Total current assets

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Financial assets at fair value through profit @sI¢FVTPL) - non-current (Notes 4, 7 and 27)
Financial assets at fair value through other cotrgmsive income (FVTOCI) - non-current

(Notes 4, 8 and 27)
Available-for-sale financial asse- nor-current (Notes 4 and 1
Financial assets measured at cost - non-curreriegéNband 14)
Investments accounted for using the equity methiadgs 4 and 1!
Property, plant and equipment (Notes 4 and 16)
Intangible assets (Notes 4 and
Deferred tax assets (Notes 4 and 23)
Guarantee deposits paid

Total non-current assets

TOTAL

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Contract liabilities- curren
Notes and accounts payable
Non-related parties
Related parties (Note 28)
Other payables (Note 18)
Tax payable (Notes 4 and 23)
Provisions (Notes 4 and 20)
Other current liabilities (Note 19)

Total current liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Net defined benefit liabilities - non-current (Net# and 21)
Guarantee deposits recer'

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

EQUITY (Notes 22 and 25)
Share capital
Common shares
Capital surplu
Retained earnin
Legal reserve
Special resen
Unappropriated earnings
Total retained earnings
Other equity

Total equity

TOTAL

The accompanying notes are an integral part dfitla@cial statements.

(With Deloitte & Touche auditors’ report dated Mar2l, 2019)

201¢ 2017

Amount % Amount %
$ 12,778,312 35 $ 12,754,576 37
2,979,132 8 1,171,056 3
30,576 - - -
- - 20,549 -
4,853,39 14 5,307,49' 15
383,602 1 336,042 1
253,10! 1 266,47! 1
7,491,07. 21 7,186,00. 21
62,823 - 27,446 -
8,521 _ - 6,48¢ _ -
28,840,540 _ 80 27,076,135 _ 78
383,497 1 - -
163,443 1 - -
- - 434,76: 1
- - 447,416 1
3,141,431 9 3,307,98. 1C
2,961,130 8 2,793,102 8
149,38: - 212,10¢ 1
306,595 1 304,835 1
2570 _ - 1371 -
7,108,046 _ 20 7,501,577 _ 22
$ 35948586 100 $ 34,577,712 _100
$ 34,26¢ - $ - -
1,936,29: 5 1,081,01: 3
2,861,76! 8 2,565,72 8
3,290,86! 9 3,246,45. 9
522,57¢ 2 1,090,94 3
- - 292,08: 1
297,71t _ 1 157,74¢ _ 1
8,943,48 25 8,433,96 25
92,82; - 84,897 -
402 _- 53¢ -
9323 _ - ___ 8543C _ -
9,036,71 _25 8,519,39 28
1,970,74 _ 5 1,970,741 6
6,674,65C 19 6,660,50: 1¢
3,418,90: 10 2,842,801 8
- - 25,96t -
15,228,50 _42 14,521.,88 _42
18,647,40 _52 17,390,65 _5C
(380,92) _ (1) 36,41¢ -
26,911,87 _75 26,058,31 75
$ 35,948,58 10C $ 34577,71 ~10C



PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP.

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earning Per Share)

OPERATING REVENUE (Notes 4 and 28)
Gross sales
Less: Sales returns and allowances
Net sales
Other operating revenue

Total operating revenue
OPERATING COSTS (Notes 4, 12, 24 and 28)
GROSS PROFIT
UNREALIZED GAIN ON TRANSACTIONS
REALIZED GROSS PROFIT
OPERATING EXPENSES (Note 24)
Marketing
General and administrative
Research and development
Reversal of expected credit loss
Total operating expenses
OPERATING INCOME
NONOPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES
Other gains and losses (Note 24)
Share of (losses) gains of subsidiaries and agsscia
(Notes 4 and 15)
Other income (Note 24)
Financial costs
Total nonoperating income and expenses
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Notes 4 and 23)

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

2018 2017
Amount % Amount %
$ 41,027,588 101 $ 42,068,216 101
371,291 1 432,902 1
40,656,297 100 41,635,314 100
147,833 - 138,218 -
40,804,130 100 41,773,532 100
31,652,858 78 30,324,437 73
9,151,272 22 11,449,095 27
(19,550) - - -
9,131,722 22 11,449,095 27
525,116 1 529,936 1
384,276 1 476,329 1
3,525,077 9 3,719,729 9
(39,098) - - -
4,395,371 11 4,725,994 11
4,736,351 11 6,723,101 16
161,238 1 (510,793) Q)
(24,194) - 416,073 1
132,028 - 89,805 -
(5,070) - (4,981) -
264,002 1 (9,896) -
5,000,353 12 6,713,205 16
682,234 1 952,233 2
4,318,119 11 5,760,972 14
(Continued)



PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP.

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earning Per Share)

2018 2017
Amount % Amount %
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) FOR
THE YEAR, NET OF INCOME TAX
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss
Unrealized loss on investments in equity
instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income $ (106,094) 1 s - -
Share of the other comprehensive loss of
associates and joint ventures accounted for
using the equity method (63,357) - - -
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan (3,701) - (8,288) -
Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
(Note 23) 2,171 - 1,408 -
Items that may be reclassified subsequently tatprof
or loss:
Share of other comprehensive loss of subsidiaries
and associates (3,975) - (392) -
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale financial
assets - - 62,712 -
Income tax benefit relating to items that may be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
(Note 23) 3,214 - 61 -
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the y
net of income tax (171,742) Q) 55,501 -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE
YEAR $ 4,146,377 10 $ 5,816,473 14
EARNINGS PER SHARE; NEW TAIWAN
DOLLARS (Note 25)
Basic $ 21.91 $ 29.2¢
Diluted $ 21.6( $ 28.8¢
The accompanying notes are an integral part ofitla@cial statements.
(With Deloitte & Touche auditors’ report dated Mar2l, 2019) (Concluded)



PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2017
Appropriation of the 2016 earnings
Legal reserve
Reversal of special rese
Cash dividends - NT$14 per share

Changes in capital surplus from intreents in associates and joint ventures accounte
using the equity metht

Actual disposal or acquisition of interests in sdizsies
Net profit for the year ended December 31, 2017

Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year @émiErember 31, 2017, net of income
tax

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2017
Effect of retrospective application
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2018 AS ADJUSTEI
Appropriation of the 2017 earnings
Legal reserve
Reversal of special reserve
Cash dividends - NT$17 per share

Changes in capital surplus from investments incagtes and joint ventures accounted
using the equity method

Subsidiaries' disposal of the investments in eqo&jruments designated as at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Disposal of equity instrument investments at failue through other comprehensive
income

Net profit for the year ended December 31, 2018
Other comprehensive loss for the year ended Dece8ih@018, net of income tax

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 201

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofitlagcial statements.

(With Deloitte & Touche auditors’ report dated Mar21, 2019)

Other Equity
Unrealized Gain
(Loss) on
Exchange Financial Assets
Differences on Unrealized Gain at Fair Value
Retained Earnings Translating (Loss) or Through Other
Unappropriated Foreign Available-for-sale Comprehensive
Common Share: Capital Surplus Legal Reservi Special Reserv Earnings Operations Financial Asset: Income Total Equity
$ 1,970,740 $ 6,652,449 $ 2,356,107 $ 111,358 $ 11,928,136 $  (66,816) $ 40,851 $ - $ 22,992,825
- - 486,699 - (486,699) - - - -
- - - (85,397 85,39( - - - -
- - - - (2,759,036) - - - (2,759,036)
- 10,73¢ - - - - - - 10,73¢
- (2,686) - - - - - - (2,686)
- - - - 5,760,972 - - - 5,760,972
- - - - (6.880) (331) 62,712 - 55,501
1,970,740 6,660,502 2,842,806 25,965 14,521,886 (67,147) 103,563 - 26,058,315
- - - - 463,052 - (103,563) (316,201) 43,288
1,970,74i 6,660,50! 2,842,80 25,96¢ 14,984,93 (67,14)) - (316,20) 26,101,60
B - 576,097 - (576,097) - i ) i
- - - (25,965) 25,965 - - - -
- - - - (3,350,258) - - - (3,350,258)
- 14,148 - - - - - - 14,148
- - - - (21,785) - - 21,785 -
- - - - (150,849 - - 150,84¢ -
- - - - 4,318,119 - - - 4,318,119
- - - - (1,530) (761) - (169,451) (171,742)
$ 1,970,74 $ 6,674,65 $ 3.418,90 $ - 15,228,50 $ (67,909 $ - 313,019 26,911,87



PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

201¢ 2017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before income tax $ 5,000,353 $ 6,713,205
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 208,353 156,455
Amortization 198,436 163,653
Recognition of refund liabilities 166,648 -
Write-down of inventories 92,379 19,396
Net (gain) loss on foreign currency exchange (69,951) 205,687
Interest income (49,565) (38,504)
Dividend income (41,698) (29,947)
Expected credit loss reversed on trade receivables (39,098) -
Unrealized gain on transactions with subsidiaries 19,550 -
Financial costs 5,070 4,981
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (1,406) -
Share of profit (loss) of subsidiaries and assesiat 24,194 (416,073)
Recognition of provisions - 238,449
Impairment loss recognized on financial assets - 147,890
Allowance for bad debts - 24,522
Other non-cash items - 1,163
Net changes related to operating assets and fiabili
Financial assets at fair value through profit @slo 11,605 5,529
Notes and accounts receivable 431,181 (851,863)
Other receivables 14,114 104,867
Inventories (397,448) (1,984,494)
Prepayments (36,962) 38,375
Other current assets (2,032) 740
Contract liabilities 34,266 -
Notes and accounts payable 1,165,893 (187,539)
Other payables 44,474 593,813
Provisions - (290,444)
Other current liabilities (318,759) (27,674)
Net defined benefit liabilities 4,228 3,883
Cash generated from operations 6,463,825 4,596,070
Interest paid (5,070) (5,385)
Income tax paid (1,246,975) (675,621)
Net cash generated from operating activities 5,211,780 3,915,064
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of financial assets at fair value thrqurgfit or loss (3,021,042) (49,675)
Proceeds from financial assets at fair value thnqugfit or loss 1,498,384 -
Payments for property, plant and equipment (374,975) (557,045)
Dividends received from associates 233,310 -
Dividends received from others 41,698 29,947
(Continued)



PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Purchase of investments accounted for using thityegethod
Payments for intangible assets

Purchase of financial assets at fair value thraugker comprehensive

income

Proceeds from capital reduction of financial asaetair value throug

profit or loss
Interest received
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fairesétiiough other
comprehensive income
Purchase of financial assets at amortized cost
(Increase) decrease in refundable deposits
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and egaig
Purchase of financial assets measured at cost
Proceeds from sale of financial assets measureasat
Decrease in debt investments with no active market

Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in guarantee deposits
Decrease in short-term borrowings
Dividends paid
Net cash used in financing activities

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF THE YEAR

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofitla@cial statements.

(With Deloitte & Touche auditors’ report dated Marzl, 2019)

-10 -

201¢ 2015
(229,857) (289,778)
(135,709) (157,998)

(53,712) -
69,855 -
49,114 38,087
25,437 -

(10,027) -
(1,199) 173

1,585 -

- (100,889)

- 6,770

- 1,244
(1,907,138) (1,079,164)
(130) (35)
- (580,500)
(3,350,258) (2,759,036)
(3,350,388) (3,339,571)
69,482 (293,941)
23,736 (797,612)
12,754,576 13,552,188
$ 12,778,312 $ 12,754,576

(Concluded)



PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless StateQtherwise)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Phison Electronics Corp. (the “Corporation”) wasadrporated on November 8, 2000 under the Company
Act of the Republic of China (“ROC"). The Corporatimainly designs and sells flash memory contreller
and peripheral system applications.

The Corporation’s shares have been trading on #iygeT Exchange (over-the-counter exchange in Tgiwan
since December 6, 2004.

The financial statements are presented in the Catipa’s functional currency, the New Taiwan dallar

2. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Gatjom’'s board of directors on March 21, 2019.

3. APPLICATION OF NEW, AMENDED AND REVISED STANDAR DS AND INTERPRETATIONS

a. Initial application of the amendments to the ltations Governing the Preparation of Financial &rep
by Securities Issuers and the International Firsn&eporting Standards (IFRS), International
Accounting Standards (IAS), Interpretations of IFRERIC), and Interpretations of IAS (SIC)
(collectively, the “IFRSs”) endorsed and issued ietfect by the FSC

Except for the following, whenever applied, thetiali application of the amendments to the
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Finan&leports by Securities Issuers and the IFRSs
endorsed and issued into effect by the FSC woutchawe any material impact on the Corporation’s
accounting policies:

1) IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and related anmeedts
IFRS 9 supersedes IAS 39 “Financial Instrumentscoeition and Measurement”, with
consequential amendments to IFRS 7 “Financial unsénts: Disclosures” and other standards.
IFRS 9 sets out the requirements for classificativeasurement and impairment of financial assets
and hedge accounting. Refer to Note 4 for inforamatelating to the relevant accounting policies.

Classification, measurement and impairment of forassets

On the basis of the facts and circumstances thateelxas at January 1, 2018, the Corporation has
performed an assessment of the classificationawfgmized financial assets retrospectively and has
elected not to restate prior reporting periods.

-11 -



The following table shows the original measurentatiégories and carrying amounts under IAS 39
and the new measurement categories and carryingirdmainder IFRS 9 for each class of the
Corporation’s financial assets as at January 18201

Measurement Category Carrying Amount
Financial Assets IAS 39 IFRS 9 IAS 39 IFRS 9 Remark
Cash and cash Loans and receivables = Amortized cost $ 12,754,576 $ 12,754,576 a)
equivalents
Equity securities Available for sale Mandatorily at FVTPL 737,002 750,375 b)
Available for sale FVTOCI - equity instruments 145,176 241,262 b)
Held for trading Mandatorily at FVTPL 67,095 67,095 -
Beneficiary certificates - Held for trading Mandatorily at FVTPL 1,050,239 1,050,239 c)
open-ended funds
Convertible bonds Designated as at FVTPL Mandatorily at FVTPL 53,722 53,722 d)
Financial assets pledged Loans and receivables  Amortized cost 20,549 20,549 a)
as collateral
Notes receivable, trade Loans and receivables  Amortized cost 5,910,016 5,910,016 a)
receivables and other
receivables
Guarantee deposits paid Loans and receivables ~ Amortized cost 1,371 1,371 a)
IAS 39 IFRS 9 Retained
Carrying Carrying Earnings Other Equity
Amount as of . Amount as of Effect on Effect on
January 1, Red?ss'f" Remeasure- January 1, January 1, January 1,
Financial Assets 2018 cations ments 2018 2018 2018 Remark
FVTPL $ 1,171,056 $ - $ - $ 1,171,056 $ - $
Add: Reclassification from
available-for-sale
(IAS 39)
Required reclassification - 737,002 13,373 750,375 116,936 (103,563) b)
1,171,056 737,002 13,373 1,921,431 116,936 (103,563)
FVTOCI - - - - - -
Add: Reclassification from - 145,176 96,086 241,262 234,554 (138,468) b)
available-for-sale
(IAS 39)
145,176 96,086 241,262 234,554 (138,468)

$ 1,171,056 $ 882,178 $ 109,459 $ 2,162,693 $ 351,490 $ (242,031)

a) Cash and cash equivalents, financial assetggdeds collateral, notes receivable, accounts
receivable, other receivables and guarantee depued that were previously classified as loans
and receivables under IAS 39 were classified asnairt&zed cost with an assessment of
expected credit losses under IFRS 9.

b) The Corporation elected to classify all of itsvéstments in equity securities previously
classified as available-for-sale under IAS 39 aS\&IPL under IFRS 9. As a result, the related
other equity - unrealized gain (loss) on availdblesale financial assets of $103,563 thousand
was reclassified to retained earnings.

Investments in unlisted shares previously measatredst under IAS 39 have been classified at
FVTPL and designated as at FVTOCI under IFRS 9 waede remeasured at fair value.

Consequently, an increase of $13,373 thousand eemgnized in both financial assets at
FVTPL and retained earnings. An increase of $96,088usand was recognized in both

financial assets at FVTOCI and other equity - ulized gain (loss) on financial assets at
FVTOCI on January 1, 2018.

The Corporation recognized under IAS 39 impairmess on certain investments in equity
securities previously measured at cost and thewassaccumulated in retained earnings. Since
those investments were designated as at FVTOCIrUR&S 9 and no impairment assessment
is required, an adjustment was made that resulteddecrease of $234,554 thousand in other
equity - unrealized gain (loss) on financial assEt$VTOCI and an increase of $234,554
thousand in retained earnings on January 1, 2018.
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2)

c) Beneficiary certificates - open-ended funds fnesly classified as held-for-trading under 1AS
39 were classified mandatorily as at FVTPL unddR3F9, because the contractual cash flows
are not solely payments of principal and interesthte principal outstanding and they are not
equity instruments.

d) Convertible bonds previously classified as aff P/ under IAS 39 were classified mandatorily
as at FVTPL under IFRS 9, because the contractasth dows are not solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding they are not equity instruments.

IAS 39 IFRS 9 Retained Other
Carrying Adjustments Carrying Earnings Equity
Amount as of  Arising from Amount as of Effect on Effect on
January 1, Initial January 1, January 1, January 1,
2018 Application 2018 2018 2018 Remark
Investments accounted for $ 3,307,982  $ (66,171) $ 3,241,811 $ 111,562 $  (177,733) e)

using the equity method

e) As a result of the retrospective applicatiorlRS 9 by subsidiaries, there was a decrease in
investments accounted for using the equity metHo#66,171 thousand, a decrease in other
equity - unrealized gain (loss) on financial asst$VTOCI of $177,733 thousand, and an
increase in retained earnings of $111,562 thousanthnuary 1, 2018.

IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customearsd related amendments

IFRS 15 establishes principles for recognizing nexaethat apply to all contracts with customers
and supersedes IAS 18 “Revenue”, IAS 11 “ConstonctiContracts” and a number of
revenue-related interpretations. Refer to Noter4ffe related accounting policies.

The Corporation elected only to retrospectivelylgpbRS 15 to contracts that were not complete
as of January 1, 2018 and did not restate priartieyy periods. The cumulative effect of the iditia
application of this standard was retrospectivebogmized at the date of initial application.

The anticipated impact on assets, liabilities aquitg when retrospectively applying IFRS 15 as of
January 1, 2018 is detailed below:

Carrying

Amount as of

December 31, Adjustments Carrying

2017 (IAS 18 Arising from Amount as of

and Related Initial January 1, 201¢

Explanations) Application (IFRS 15)
Provisions - current $ 292,081 $ (292,081) $ -
Other current liabilities 157,746 292,081 449,827
Total effect on liabilities $ -

Prior to the application of IFRS 15, estimated saleturns and allowances were recognized in
provisions of sales returns and allowances. Afber dpplication of IFRS 15, it is recognized in
refund liabilities (other current liabilities).
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The differences if the Corporation was to contiapplying IAS 18 in 2018 instead of IFRS 15 is
shown in the table below.

Impact on assets, liabilities and equity for therent year

December 31,

2018
Increase in provisions - current $ 185,919
Decrease in other current liabilities (185,919)
Increase (decrease) in liabilities $ -

b. Amendments to the Regulations Governing the @&&atjon of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers
and the IFRSs endorsed by the FSC for applicatamtirsg from 2019

Effective Date

New IFRSs Announced by IASB (Note 1)
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle January 1, 2019
Amendments to IFRS 9 “Prepayment Features with tilega January 1, 2019 (Note 2)
Compensation”
IFRS 16 “Leases” January 1, 2019
Amendments to IAS 19 “Plan Amendment, Curtailment o January 1, 2019 (Note 3)
Settlement”
Amendments to IAS 28 “Long-term Interests in Asate$ and Joint January 1, 2019
Ventures”
IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments” January 1, 2019

Note 1: Unless stated otherwise, the above New $F&8 effective for annual periods beginning on
or after their respective effective dates.

Note 2: The FSC permits the election for early dgidopof the amendments starting from 2018.

Note 3: The Corporation shall apply these amendsndnt plan amendments, curtailments or
settlements occurring on or after January 1, 2019.

IFRS 16 “Leases”

IFRS 16 sets out the accounting standards for dethse will supersede IAS 17 and a number of rdlate
interpretations.

Definition of a lease

Upon initial application of IFRS 16, the Corporatiwill elect to apply the guidance of IFRS 16, in
determining whether contracts are, or containaadeonly to contracts entered into (or changedjron
after January 1, 2019 in order to determine whetthese contracts are, or contain, a lease. Costract
identified as containing a lease under IAS 17 &RIC 4 will not be reassessed and will be accounted
for in accordance with the transitional provisiamgler IFRS 16.

The Corporation as lessee

Upon initial application of IFRS 16, the Corporatishall recognize right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for all leases on the balance sheetsepk for low-value and short-term leases. On the
statements of comprehensive income, the Corporationld present the depreciation expense charged
on right-of-use assets separately from the inteegpiense accrued on lease liabilities; interest is
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computed using the effective interest method. @nstlatements of cash flows, cash payments for the
principal portion of lease liabilities are classdi within financing activities; cash payments fbe t
interest portion are classified within operatingh\aties. Prior to the application of IFRS 16, pagmts
under operating lease contracts are recognizek@anges on a straight-line basis. Cash flows for
operating leases are classified within operatiriyities on the statements of cash flows.

The Corporation anticipates applying IFRS 16 rgteasively with the cumulative effect of the initial
application of this standard recognized on Januar019. Comparative information will not be
restated.

Lease liabilities will be recognized on Januar2@19 for leases currently classified as operagagés
under IAS 17. Lease liabilities will be measuredhat present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrovabgon January 1, 2019. Right-of-use assetdwill
measured at their carrying amount as if IFRS 16 beeh applied since the commencement date, but
discounted using the aforementioned incrementablaong rate. The Corporation will apply IAS 36 to
all right-of-use assets.

The Corporation expects to apply the following picat expedients:

1) The Corporation will apply a single discounterad a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics to measure lease liabilities.

2) The Corporation will account for those leasaswhich the lease term ends on or before December
31, 2019 as short-term leases.

3) The Corporation will exclude initial direct cestrom the measurement of right-of-use assets on
January 1, 2019.

4) The Corporation will use hindsight, such asétedmining lease terms, to measure lease liakilitie
The Corporation as lessor

The Corporation will not make any adjustments &ases in which it is a lessor and will account for
those leases with the application of IFRS 16 stgfiiom January 1, 2019.

Anticipated impact on assets, liabilities and eguit

Carrying Adjustments Adjusted
Amount as of Arising from Carrying
December 31, Initial Amount as of
2018 Application January 1, 2019
Right-of-use assets $ - $ 26,831 $ 26,831
Guarantee deposits paid 2,570 (164) 2,406
Total effect on assets $ 2570 $ 26,667 $ 29,237
Lease liabilities - current $ - $ 8,277 $ 8,277
Lease liabilities - non-current - 18,390 18,390
Total effect on liabilities $ - $ 26,667 $ 26,667

Except for the above impact, as of the date thanfifal statements were authorized for issue, the
Corporation assessed that the application of citserdards and interpretations will not have a radter
impact on the Corporation’s financial position dim&ncial performance.
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c. New IFRSs in issue but not yet endorsed an@assuio effect by the FSC

Effective Date
New IFRSs Announced by IASB (Note 1)

Amendments to IFRS 3 “Definition of a Business” January 1, 2020 (Note 2)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contrdsudf Assets To be determined by IASB
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint efit

IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” January 1, 2021

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 “Definition of Matafi January 1, 2020 (Note 3)

Note 1: Unless stated otherwise, the above New $F&8 effective for annual periods beginning on
or after their respective effective dates.

Note 2: The Corporation shall apply these amendsnémtbusiness combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning @ tinst annual reporting period beginning on
or after January 1, 2020 and to asset acquisitizaisoccur on or after the beginning of that
period.

Note 3: The Corporation shall apply these amendsnpnbspectively for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2020.

As of the date the financial statements were aigbdrfor issue, the Corporation is continuously
assessing the possible impact that the applicafiather standards and interpretations will havehan

Corporation’s financial position and financial perhance and will disclose the relevant impact when
the assessment is completed.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of Compliance

The parent company only financial statements haentprepared in accordance with the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports éguBties Issuers (the “Regulations”).

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared ohisterical cost basis, except for financial insteunts
which are measured at fair value and net definegfiidiabilities which are measured at the preseattie
of the defined benefit obligation less the fairueabf plan assets.

The fair value measurements, which are groupedLliatels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fai
value measurement inputs are observable and basedeosignificance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, are described asvistlo

a. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjustedktive markets for identical assets or liabilities

b. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quotedegrincluded within Level 1 that are observabletfar
asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as psg®r indirectly (i.e., derived from prices); and

c. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for gsetor liability.
When preparing its parent company only financiateshents, the Corporation used the equity method to
account for its investments in subsidiaries, asgesiand joint ventures. In order for the amouhth@net

profit for the year, other comprehensive incometfe year and total equity in the parent compary on
financial statements to be the same as the amatiniisutable to the owners of the Corporation B it
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consolidated financial statements, adjustmentsngriif'om the differences in the accounting treatmen
between the parent company only basis and the tdam basis were made to investments accounted fo
using the equity method, share of profit or loss sobsidiaries and associates and share of other
comprehensive income of subsidiaries and assocgesppropriate, in the parent company only fir@nc
statements.

Classification of Current and Non-current Assets ad Liabilities

Current assets include:

a. Assets held primarily for the purpose of traging

b. Assets expected to be realized within 12 moattes the reporting period; and

c. Cash and equivalents, unless the asset isctestfrom being exchanged or used to settle dityalbor
at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Current liabilities include:
a. Liabilities held primarily for the purpose oadling;
b. Liabilities due to be settled within 12 montlii®athe reporting period; and

c. Liabilities for which the Corporation does natve an unconditional right to defer settlementafidleast
12 months after the reporting period.

All other assets and liabilities are classifiecdhan-current.
Foreign Currencies

In preparing the Corporation’s financial statemetrensactions in currencies other than the Cotjmora
functional currency (foreign currencies) are reépgt at the rates of exchange prevailing at thedaft
the transactions.

At the end of each reporting period, monetary itel@sominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
the rates prevailing at that date. Exchange difilege on monetary items arising from settlement or
translation are recognized in profit or loss in pleeiod in which they arise.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value thatdereminated in foreign currencies are retranslated
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair e/alias determined. Exchange differences arisinghen t
retranslation of nonmonetary items are includedpiafit or loss for the period except for exchange
differences arising from the retranslation of nonetary items in respect of which gains and losses a
recognized directly in other comprehensive incoarg in which case, the exchange differences ace als
recognized directly in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured at histociwstl in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

For the purpose of presenting financial statemettits, functional currencies of the Corporation are
translated into the presentation currency, the Naiwan dollar, as follows: Assets and liabilitiese a
translated at the exchange rates prevailing a¢mldeof the reporting period; and income and expéages
are translated at the average exchange ratesef@etiind. The resulting currency translation déferes are
recognized in other comprehensive income
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Inventories

Inventories consist of raw materials, semifinistygemds, work-in-process and finished goods, whi@h ar
stated at the lower of cost or net realizable valeentory write-downs are made by item, excepenmght
may be appropriate to group similar or related gefirhe net realizable value is the estimated sgefliice

of inventories less all estimated costs of compleind costs necessary to make the sale. Invesitane
recorded at their weighted-average costs at thegtiek reporting period.

Investments Accounted for Using the Equity Method

The Corporation uses the equity method to accauntd investments in subsidiaries and associates.

Investments in subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by terporation.

Under the equity method, an investment in a sudsidis initially recognized at cost and the cargyin
amount is increased or decreased to recognize tinpo@tion's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the subsidiary after the daacquisition. The Corporation also recognites
changes in the Corporation’s share of equity ofstigsidiary.

Changes in the Corporation’s ownership interessubsidiaries that do not result in the Corporasidoss

of control over the subsidiaries are accounted a@®requity transactions. The Corporation recognizes
directly in equity any difference between the cemgyamount of the investment and the fair valuehef
consideration paid or received.

The Corporation assesses its investment for anginment by comparing the carrying amount with the
estimated recoverable amount as assessed badeel fomancial statements of the subsidiary as a evhah
impairment loss is recognized when the carryinguamexceeds the recoverable amount. If the recbieera
amount of the investment subsequently increasesCtiporation recognizes a reversal of the impaitme
loss; the adjusted post-reversal carrying amouatishnot exceed the carrying amount that would have
been recognized (net of amortization) had no inmpait loss been recognized in prior years. An
impairment loss recognized on goodwill cannot berged in a subsequent period.

Profits and losses resulting from any downstreaandactions are eliminated in full only in the paren
company’s financial statements. Profits and logsssilting from upstream transactions and transastio
between subsidiaries are recognized only in therarompany’s financial statements only to the rexoé
interests in the subsidiaries that are not relaigdde Corporation.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Corporati@s significant influence and which is neither a
subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.

Under the equity method, an investment in an aag®@ initially recognized at cost and adjustextenfter
to recognize the Corporation’s share of the pmfitoss and other comprehensive income of the &soc
The Corporation also recognizes the changes i€thporation’s share of equity of associates.

When the Corporation subscribes for additional shares of an associate at a percentage diffentifs
existing ownership percentage, the resulting cag@mount of the investment differs from the amaafmt
the Corporation’s proportionate interest in theoagge. The Corporation records such a differerscara
adjustment to investments with the correspondinguarh charged or credited to capital surplus. If the
Corporation’s ownership interest is reduced dutécadditional subscription of new shares of ana@ate,
the proportionate amount of the gains or lossesiquely recognized in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate is reclassified to profiloss on the same basis as would be requirddeif
investee had directly disposed of the related agseliabilities. When the adjustment should beitéebto
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capital surplus, but the capital surplus recognizech investments accounted for using the equityhoe
is insufficient, the shortage is debited to retdiearnings.

When the Corporation’s share of losses of an agand a joint venture equals or exceeds itsasten
that associate and joint venture (which includgs@rrying amount of the investment accounted &ngl
the equity method and long-term interests thasuinstance, form part of the Corporation’s net imest
in the associate and joint venture), the Corponatiscontinues recognizing its share of furtheiséss
Additional losses and liabilities are recognizedydin the extent that the Corporation has incutesghl
obligations, or constructive obligations, or madgments on behalf of that associate and joint ventu

When the Corporation determines impairment losgieastments in associates, the entire carrying amou
of the investment (including goodwill) is testedr fompairment as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount with its carrying amount. Anyainment loss recognized forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impant loss is recognized to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequenttgases.

The Corporation discontinues the use of the equ#yhod from the date on which its investment cetses
be an associate. Any retained investment is meadsurair value at that date, and the fair valueegarded

as the investment’s fair value on initial recogmitias a financial asset. The difference betweeprdous
carrying amount of the associate attributable o réftained interest and its fair value is includedhe
determination of the gain or loss on disposal ef élssociate. The Corporation accounts for all atsoun
previously recognized in other comprehensive incameelation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required had that associate directly disgaf the related assets or liabilities. If aregtment in

an associate becomes an investment in a joint remuan investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate, the Corporation coesirto apply the equity method and does not remeasur
the retained interest.

When the Corporation transacts with its assocjatafits and losses resulting from these transasteme
recognized in the Corporation’s financial statersasttly to the extent of the interests in the asdedhat
are not related to the Corporation.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially staé¢aost and subsequently stated at cost less atatehu
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss.

Property, plant and equipment in the course of ttoason are carried at cost less any recognized
impairment loss. Such assets are depreciated asdifeéd to the appropriate categories of propgtamnt
and equipment when completed and ready for thegnded uses.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment isogeized using the straight-line method. Each
significant part is depreciated separately. Themased useful lives, residual values and depremiati
method are reviewed at the end of each reportirigghe

On derecognition of an item of property, plant @auglipment, the difference between the sales presceed
and the carrying amount of the asset is recogriizedofit or loss.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that aeguired separately are initially measured at emst
subsequently measured at cost less accumulatedtization and accumulated impairment loss.
Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basihe estimated useful life, residual value, and
amortization method are reviewed at the end of egpbrting period, with the effect of any changeshie
estimates being accounted for on a prospectives basi
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On derecognition of an intangible asset, the dfiee between the net disposal proceeds and thencarr
amount of the asset is recognized in profit or.loss

Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets OtherThan Goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Corporatieviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets, excluding goodwill, to determivieether there is any indication that those adsate
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indicagersts, the recoverable amount of the asset imaisd

in order to determine the extent of the impairmens. When it is not possible to estimate the recae
amount of an individual asset, the Corporatiomestés the recoverable amount of the cash-genenaibg
to which the asset belongs. Corporate assets lagaid to the smallest group of cash-generatirnis on

a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives anthangible assets not yet available for use areedefor
impairment at least annually and whenever theaam imdication that the asset may be impaired.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair vdess costs to sell and value in use. If the reahler
amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is at#onto be less than its carrying amount, the cagry
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit iscestitto its recoverable amount, with the resulting
impairment loss recognized in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss is subsequently reverbedsdrrying amount of the asset or cash-generatiiig

is increased to the revised estimate of its reableramount, but only to the extent of the carrangpunt
that would have been determined had no impairnwss been recognized for the asset or cash-gergeratin
unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairmergdas recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are griped when the Corporation becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities areialiy measured at fair value. Transaction costg tra
directly attributable to the acquisition or issuk fimancial assets and financial liabilities (othtbran
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVT)Pire added to or deducted from the fair valuehef t
financial assets or financial liabilities, as apprate, on initial recognition. Transaction cosisectly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognized
immediately in profit or loss.

a. Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financiaktsare recognized and derecognized on a trade date
basis.

1) Measurement category

2018

Financial assets are classified into the followirggegories: Financial assets at FVTPL, financial
assets at amortized cost and investments in eqgitijuments at FVTOCI.

a) Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL wheh fnancial assets are mandatorily classified
or designated as at FVTPL. Financial assets manlyatmassified as at FVTPL include

investments in equity instruments which are notgiheded as at FVTOCI and debt instruments
that do not meet the amortized cost criteria oRW@&OCI criteria.
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b)

Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measatréair value, with any gains or losses
arising on remeasurement recognized in profit es.Id he net gain or loss recognized in profit
or loss does not incorporate any dividends or @steearned on such a financial asset. Fair value
is determined in the manner described in Note 27.

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets that meet the following conditians subsequently measured at amortized
cost:

i. The financial asset is held within a businesdehovhose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flamst

ii. The contractual terms of the financial asseegise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on thiegipal amount outstanding.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial ass#tsaamortized cost, including cash and cash
equivalents and notes and trade receivables attizegbicost, are measured at amortized cost,
which equals the gross carrying amount determirsiitguthe effective interest method less any
impairment loss. Exchange differences are recodnizerofit or loss.

Interest income is calculated by applying the difecinterest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for:

i. Purchased or originated credit-impaired finah@asets, for which interest income is
calculated by applying the credit-adjusted effectinterest rate to the amortized cost of
such a financial asset; and

ii. Financial assets that have subsequently beavetit-impaired, for which interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest retehe amortized cost of such a financial
asset.

Cash equivalents include time deposits with origmaturities within 3 months from the date of
acquisition, which are highly liquid, readily comtible to a known amount of cash and are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in ealThese cash equivalents are held for the
purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Corporation may make arevocable election to designate

investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI.i@esion as at FVTOCI is not permitted if

the equity investment is held for trading or ifistcontingent consideration recognized by an
acquirer in a business combination.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI aressgjpiently measured at fair value with
gains and losses arising from changes in fair vedgegnized in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in other equity. The cumulative gailoss will not be reclassified to profit or
loss on disposal of the equity investments; instdaal/ will be transferred to retained earnings.

Dividends on these investments in equity instrusi@me recognized in profit or loss when the

Corporation’s right to receive the dividends isabfished, unless the dividends clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
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2017

Financial assets are classified into the followiragegories: Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, available-for-sale financial assatsl loans and receivables.

a)

b)

Financial assets at fair value through profioss

Financial assets are classified as at fair valoeuthh profit or loss when such financial assets
are either held for trading or designated as at/lue through profit or loss.

A financial asset may be designated as at fair evahrough profit or loss upon initial
recognition if:

I. Such designation eliminates or significantly ueels a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

ii. The financial asset forms part of a group afaficial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and has performance evaluatedfain @alue basis in accordance with
the Corporation’s documented risk management oesiment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on thasib; or

iii. The contract contains one or more embeddedvalives so that the entire hybrid
(combined) contract can be designated as at fhievtarough profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit asl@re stated at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognized intofdss. The net gain or loss recognized in
profit or loss does not incorporate any dividendsnterest earned on the financial asset. Fair
value is determined in the manner described in ¥dte

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-deirt that are either designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified as loard r@ceivables, held-to-maturity investments or
financial assets at fair value through profit sdo

Available-for-sale financial assets are measurddiatvalue. Changes in the carrying amounts
of available-for-sale monetary financial assetkafirg to changes in foreign currency exchange
rates, interest income calculated using the effeciinterest method and dividends on
available-for-sale equity investments) are recagphiin profit or loss. Other changes in the
carrying amount of available-for-sale financial etssare recognized in other comprehensive
income and will be reclassified to profit or loskem such investments are disposed of or are
determined to be impaired.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instrumeats recognized in profit or loss when the
Corporation’s right to receive the dividends isae$ished.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do natdna quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measurelddanivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity invesita are measured at cost less any identified
impairment loss at the end of each reporting pedod presented as a separate line item as
financial assets measured at cost. If, in a sulesgqeriod, the fair value of the financial assets
can be reliably measured, the financial assetsrewreasured at fair value. The difference
between the carrying amount and the fair valuedésgnized in other comprehensive income on
financial assets. Any impairment losses are reaaghin profit and loss.
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c) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including cash and cashvalgunits, debt investments with no active

market, notes receivable and trade receivableshaesured using the effective interest method
at amortized cost less any impairment, except fartgerm receivables when the effect of

discounting is immaterial.

Cash equivalents include time deposits with origmaturities within 3 months from the date of
acquisition, which are highly liquid, readily comtible to a known amount of cash and are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in ealThese cash equivalents are held for the
purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

2) Impairment of financial assets
2018

The Corporation recognizes a loss allowance foreetqul credit losses on financial assets at
amortized cost (including trade receivables) atethe of each reporting period.

The loss allowance for accounts receivable is nredsat an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses. For other financial assets, whencthdit risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is recognizgdan amount equal to the expected credit losses
resulting from possible default events of the ficiah instruments within 12 months after the
reporting date. If, on the other hand, there hanlzesignificant increase in credit risk sinceiahit
recognition, a loss allowance is recognized at amoumt equal to the expected credit losses
resulting from possible default events over theeexgd life of the financial instruments.

Expected credit losses reflect the weighted aveddgeredit losses with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights. The portion qfested credit losses that is expected to resutt fro
default events on a financial instrument that arssiple within 12 months after the reporting date
are 12-month expected credit losses. Lifetime ebguecredit losses are the expected credit losses
that arise if debtors default on their obligatioats some time during the life of a financial
instrument.

The Corporation recognizes an impairment gain ss la profit or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carryingpant through a loss allowance account. Except
for investments in debt instruments that are meaksat FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is
recognized in other comprehensive income and doeseduce the carrying amount of the financial
asset.

2017

Financial assets, other than those at fair valusutih profit or loss, are assessed for indicatbrs o
impairment at the end of each reporting periodakamal assets are considered to be impaired when
there is objective evidence, as a result of onanore events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial assets, that the estid future cash flows of the investment have been
affected.

For financial assets at amortized cost, such ade traceivables, such assets are assessed for
impairment on a collective basis even if they wassessed not to be impaired individually.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolioreteivables could include the Corporation’s past
experience with collecting payments, an increaghemumber of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period, as well as obskrvelbanges in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with defaults on receigab
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3)

For a financial asset at amortized cost, the amafinthe impairment loss recognized is the
difference between such an asset's carrying amandtthe present value of its estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial assetgiai effective interest rate.

For financial assets at amortized cost, if, in lassguent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related oljetdive event occurring after the impairment was
recognized, the previously recognized impairmest I reversed through profit or loss to the
extent that the carrying amount of the investmanti{e date on which the impairment is reversed)
does not exceed what the amortized cost would bega had the impairment not been recognized.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a sigaiit or prolonged decline in the fair value of a
security below its cost is considered to be objeatividence of impairment.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is amrsid to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses
previously recognized in other comprehensive incameereclassified to profit or loss in the period.

In respect of available-for-sale equity securitiegpairment loss previously recognized in profit or
loss is not reversed through profit or loss. Angréase in fair value subsequent to an impairment
loss is recognized in other comprehensive incomaespect of available-for-sale debt securities,
impairment loss is subsequently reversed througfitfor loss if an increase in the fair value oéth
investment can be objectively related to an eveoting after the recognition of the impairment
loss.

For financial assets measured at cost, the amadumieoimpairment loss is measured as the
difference between such an asset's carrying amandtthe present value of its estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rateetfirn for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subseqpenibds

The carrying amount of a financial asset is redumnethe impairment loss directly for all financial
assets, with the exception of trade receivablegravithe carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. When trade receivankesonsidered uncollectible, they are written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent es@ss of amounts previously written off are
credited against the allowance account. Changéseirtarrying amount of the allowance account
are recognized in profit or loss except for unaill#e trade receivables that are written off aghin
the allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Corporation derecognizes a financial asset whign the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire or when it transfers theniiie asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

Before 2018, on derecognition of a financial agséts entirety, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideraticrived and receivable and the cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognized in other comps#enncome is recognized in profit or loss.
From 2018, on derecognition of a financial assetrabrtized cost in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sutheotonsideration received and receivable is
recognized in profit or loss. On derecognition ofiavestment in a debt instrument at FVTOCI, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount taedsum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss thathesh recognized in other comprehensive income
is recognized in profit or loss. However, on degggtion of an investment in an equity instrument
at FVTOCI, the difference between the asset's aagramount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognized in profibes, and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognized in other comprehensive income is traregdedirectly to retained earnings, without
recycling through profit or loss.
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b. Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Corporation ategrized at the proceeds received, net of direakis
costs.

c. Financial liabilities
1) Recognition and measurement
On initial recognition, the transaction costs ofaficial assets that are neither held for trading no
designated as at FVTPL (including short-term bommgs, trade and notes payables, other payables
and guarantee deposits received) which are diretdtijoutable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are atitte or deducted from the fair value of the finahci

assets or financial liabilities. Subsequent vabrats measured at amortized cost determined by the
effective interest method.

2) Derecognition of financial liabilities
The difference between the carrying amount of tmankial liability derecognized and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assetsterred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in

profit or loss.

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Corporationahpesent obligation (legal or constructive) assit

of a past event; it is probable that the Corporatidl be required to settle the obligation; andefiable
estimate can be made for the amount of the obtigati

Revenue Recognition
2018

The Corporation identifies contracts with the custes, allocates the transaction price to the pexdoce
obligations and recognizes revenue when performabbgations are satisfied.

Revenue from the sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods comes from thedfalash memory controllers, peripheral systems and
other applications. Sales of the aforementioneddgoare recognized as revenue when the goods are
delivered to the customer’s specific location o tjpods are shipped because it is the time when the
customer has full discretion over the manner ofrithistion and price to sell the goods, has the arim
responsibility for sales to future customers, aedrb the risks of obsolescence. Trade receivalbes a
recognized concurrently. When the customer injtiplirchases the goods, the transaction price redés/
recognized as a contract liability until the gobdse been delivered to the customer.

The Corporation does not recognize sales revenumairrials delivered to subcontractors because this
delivery does not involve a transfer of risks aealards of the materials’ ownership.

2017

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the cersidn received or receivable. Revenue is redfmed
estimated customer returns, rebates and othersialibwances.
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Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized wheimeafollowing conditions are satisfied:

a. The Corporation has transferred to the buyerstpsificant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

b. The Corporation retains neither continuing maniad) involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership nor effective control over the gosd#d;

c. The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

d. It is probable that the economic benefits astedi with the transaction will flow to the Corpadoat
and

e. The costs incurred or to be incurred in respktiie transaction can be measured reliably.

The Corporation does not recognize sales revenueaiarials delivered to subcontractors because this
delivery does not involve a transfer of risks aedlards of material ownership.

Specifically, sales of goods are recognized whexdgare delivered and titles have passed to therbuy
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases wheneveerins of a lease transfer substantially all tblesrand
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other Isea@se classified as operating leases.

a. The Corporation as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognized straight-line basis over the term of the raktva
lease.

b. The Corporation as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognized as ansxpeara straight-line basis over the lease term.
Employee Benefits
a. Short-term employee benefits

Liabilities recognized on short-term employee bégefre measured at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for tlae services.

b. Retirement benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefdns are recognized as an expense when
employees have rendered services entitling thetimetaontributions.

Defined benefit costs (including service costs, imdé¢rest and remeasurement) under the defined
benefit retirement plans are determined using tiogepted unit credit method. Service costs and net
interest on net defined benefit liabilities (asset® recognized as employee benefits expensd®in t
period that they occur. Remeasurement, comprisitgadal gains and losses and the return on plan
assets (excluding interest), is recognized in atbenprehensive income in the period in which itursc
Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensivemimcis reflected immediately in retained
earnings and will not be reclassified to profilass.
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The net defined benefit liabilities (assets) repnéshe actual deficit (surplus) in the Corporason
defined benefit plan. Any surplus resulting fronstbalculation is limited to the present value of a
refunds from the plans or reductions in future dbations to the plans.

c. Termination benefits

A liability for termination benefits is recognized the earlier of when the Corporation can no longe
withdraw the offer of the termination benefits ohem the Corporation recognizes any related
restructuring costs.

Share-based Payment Arrangements - Employee Sharep@ns

The fair value determined at the grant date of egg®# share options is expensed on a straight-lisesb
over the vesting period, based on the Corporatibe& estimate of the number of shares or optiuatsare
expected to ultimately vest, with a correspondmgease in capital surplus - employee share optiors
recognized as an expense in full at the grantiflaested immediately.

At the end of each reporting period, the Corporatievises its estimate of the number of employegesh
options expected to vest. The impact of the remigibthe original estimates is recognized in profiloss
such that the cumulative expenses reflects thesedvestimate, with a corresponding adjustment ¢o th
capital surplus - employee share options.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the ¢uavepayable and deferred tax.
a. Current tax

According to the Income Tax Law, an additional tdounappropriated earnings is provided as income
tax in the year the shareholders approve to ret@inings.

Adjustments of prior years’ tax liabilities are &dicdto or deducted from the current year’s tax [@iowi.
b. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differenbesveen the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the parent company only financiaatetments and the corresponding tax bases used in th
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liatdls are generally recognized for all taxable terapo
differences. Deferred tax assets are generallygreézed for all deductible temporary differences and
unused loss carry-forwards to the extent that jirabable that taxable profits will be availableamgt
which those deductible temporary differences caatiieed.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxatdmporary differences associated with investmants
subsidiaries and associates, except where the f2tigo is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that thegerary difference will not reverse in the foreddea
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductitdeporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are recognized onlyg@xitent that it is probable that there will befisignt
taxable profits against which to utilize the betseff the temporary differences and that they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is wadeat the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probdbét sufficient taxable profits will be availabie
allow all or part of the asset to be recoveredviBtesly unrecognized deferred tax assets are also
reviewed at the end of each reporting period amtgeized to the extent that it is probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to@l all or part of the assets to be recovered.
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Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measuréukatx rates that are expected to apply to thege
which the liabilities are settled or the assetsraadized, based on tax rates and tax laws tha haen
enacted or substantively enacted by the end ofdperting period. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequemased on the manner in which the Corporation
expects, at the end of the reporting period, t@vec or settle the carrying amount of its asset$ an
liabilities.

c. Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognized in prafitogs, except when they relate to items that are
recognized in other comprehensive income, in whielke, the current and deferred tax are also
recognized in other comprehensive income.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES O F ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Corporation’s accountjmglicies, management is required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying anuflagsets and liabilities that are not readilyaappt
from other sources. The estimates and associasethptions are based on historical experience draf ot
factors that are considered relevant. Actual resulty differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are rediesn an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in whichetfteamates are revised if the revisions affect dahbt
period or in the period of the revisions and futpegiods if the revisions affect both current aotufe
periods.

a. Estimated impairment of financial assets - 2018

The provision for impairment of trade receivabkedased on assumptions about the risk of defaudts a
expected loss rates. The Corporation uses judgmeamiking these assumptions and in selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, which are dsh®n the Corporation’s historical experience,
existing market conditions as well as forward logkestimates at the end of each reporting period. F
details of the key assumptions and inputs usedNsee 11. Where the actual future cash inflows are
less than expected, a material impairment lossamag.

b. Estimated impairment of trade receivables - 2017

When there is objective evidence of impairment ,ldbe Corporation takes into consideration the
estimation of future cash flows. The amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference
between an asset’s carrying amount and the preaére of the estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurréshodnted at the financial asset’s original effexti
interest rate. Where the actual future cash flonedess than expected, a material impairment Iass m
arise.

c. Inventory write-downs

The net realizable value of inventory is its estedaselling price in the ordinary course of business

its estimated costs of completion and the estimetsts necessary to make the sale. The estimation o
net realizable value is based on current marketitons and historical experience with the sale of
products of a similar nature. Changes in marketditmms may have a material impact on the
estimation of net realizable value.
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6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

December 31

2018 2017
Cash on hand $ 60 $ 60
Checking accounts and demand deposits 7,956,746 8,440,071
Cash equivalents
Time deposits with original maturities of less tfBamonths 4,821,506 4,314,445

$ 12,778,312 $ 12,754,576

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PRO FIT OR LOSS

December 31

2018 2017
Non-derivative financial assets - current
Financial assets at FVTPL
Convertible bonds $ - $ 53,722
Financial assets held for trading
Beneficiary certificates - open-ended funds - 1,050,239
Domestic listed shares - 67,095
- 1,117,334
Financial assets mandatorily at FVTPL
Beneficiary certificates - open-ended funds 2,520,850 -
Domestic listed shares 372,994 -
Convertible bonds 85,288 -
2,979,132 -

$ 2,979,132 $ 1,171,056

Non-derivative financial assets - non-current

Financial assets mandatorily classified at FVTPL

Private equity funds $ 47,366 $ -
Domestic unlisted shares 281,900 -
Overseas unlisted shares 54,231 -

$ 383,497 $ -
8. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER CO MPREHENSIVE INCOME -
NON-CURRENT - 2018
Investments in Equity Instruments at FVTOCI

December 31,
2018

Domestic investments - unlisted shares $ 70,134
Overseas investments - unlisted shares 93,309

$ 163,443
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10.

These investments in equity instruments are nal Fal trading. Instead, they are held for medium to
long-term strategic purposes. Accordingly, the ng@naent elected to designate these investmentsiityeq
instruments as at FVTOCI as they believe that neizing short-term fluctuations in these investmefatis
value in profit or loss would not be consistenthatite Corporation’s strategy of holding these itwvests
for long-term purposes. These investments in eqa#fruments were classified as available-for-salder
IAS 39. Refer to Notes 3 and 14 for informationatilg to their reclassification and comparative
information for 2017.

In 2018, the Corporation paid $53,712 thousancttuime common shares of domestic and foreign @alist
entities for medium- to long-term strategic purmygbe management designated these investments as a
FVTOCI.

In 2018, some of the Corporation’s domestic anceifpr unlisted investments completed liquidation
procedures and were dissolved, and the related ethety - unrealized gain on financial assets\atGCl
of $150,848 thousand was transferred to retainedress.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTIZED COST - CURRENT - 2018

December 31,
2018

Certificates of deposit $ 20,356
Time deposits with original maturities of more tif&amonths 10,220

$ 30,576

The interest rate for time deposits with originatorities of more than 3 months was 0.13% at tlieadn
the reporting period. The time deposits were d@ssas debt investments with no active market uhig
39. Refer to Notes 3 and 10 for information relgtio their reclassification and comparative infotiora
for 2017.

Refer to Note 30 for information relating to inv@gnts in financial assets at amortized cost pledged
security.

DEBT INVESTMENTS WITH NO ACTIVE MARKET - 2017
December 31,
2017
Certificates of deposit $ 20,549

Refer to Note 30 for information relating to dettestments with no active market pledged as sgcurit
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11. NOTES RECEIVABLE, TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER R ECEIVABLES

December 31

2018 2017
Notes receivable
Notes receivable - operating $ - $ 4
Accounts receivable
At amortized cost
Gross carrying amount - non-related parties $ 4,994,159 $ 5,492,888
Gross carrying amount - related parties 383,602 336,042
5,377,761 5,828,930
Less: Loss allowance 140,762 185,393
Notes and accounts receivable, net $ 5,236,999 $ 5,643,537
Other receivables
Income tax refund receivable $ 176,010 $ 116,593
Factored accounts receivable 74,777 147,526
Others 2,318 2,356
Other receivables $ 253,105 $ 266,475

Trade Receivables

For the year ended December 31, 2018

The average credit period of sales of goods wat® 3D days. The Corporation adopted a policy of onl
dealing with entities that are rated the equivateinvestment grade or higher and obtaining sigfit
collateral, where appropriate, as a means of ntitigahe risk of financial loss from defaults. Citagting
information is obtained from independent rating rames where available or, if not available, the
Corporation uses other publicly available finanamebrmation or its own trading records to rateriajor
customers. The Corporation’s exposure and the tcmadings of its counterparties are continuously
monitored and the aggregate value of transactionslgded is spread amongst approved counterparties.
Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty lamihat are reviewed and approved by the risk
management committee annually.

In order to minimize credit risk, the managementhsd Corporation has delegated staff responsible fo
determining credit limits, credit approvals andestimonitoring procedures to ensure that follow-opoa

is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, Gogporation reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of the reportimgiqud to ensure that an adequate allowance is rwade
possible irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,niamagement believes the Corporation’s credit igsk
significantly reduced.

The Corporation applies the simplified approachltowing for expected credit losses prescribed 3

9, which permits the use of a lifetime expectedditréosses allowance for all trade receivables. The
expected credit losses on trade receivables aimadetl using an allowance matrix by reference tst pa
default experience with the respective debtorsam@nalysis of each debtor’s current financial fmsi
adjusted for general economic conditions of theigty in which the debtors operate and an assessyhen
both the current as well as the forecasted dineadfoeconomic conditions at the reporting date.ties
Corporation’s historical credit losses experienoesdnot show significantly different loss pattefas
different customer segments, the loss allowanc&hik based on the past due status of receivablest
further distinguished according to different segtaeai the Corporation’s customer base.
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The Corporation writes off a trade receivable whkere is information indicating that the debtor is
experiencing severe financial difficulty and théseno realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. theieaf
either when the debtor has been placed under htjoi or when the trade receivables are over tvavsye
past due. For trade receivables that have beenewrinff, the Corporation continues to engage in
enforcement activity to attempt to recover the insddes which are due. Where recoveries are madeget
are recognized in profit or loss.

The following table details the loss allowance @de receivables - non-related parties based on the
Corporation’s allowance matrix.

December 31, 2018

Less than 2
Not Past Due Months 2to3Months 3to4 Months 4to5 Months Over 5 Months Total
Expected credit loss rate 1.57% 13.64% 19.39% 26.79% 61.45% 100%
Gross carrying amount $ 4,548,162 $ 410,894 $ 4,813 $ 6,474 $ 13,879 $ 9,937 $ 4,994,159
Loss allowance (lifetime expected
credit losses) (72,558) (47,920) (923) (1,687) (8,203) (9.471) (140,762)
Amortized cost $ 4,475,604 $ 362,974 $ 3,890 $ 4,787 $ 5,676 $ 466 $ 4,853,397

The movements of the loss allowance of trade rabéds were as follows:

2018
Balance at January 1, 2018 per IAS 39 $ 185,393
Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9 -
Balance at January 1, 2018 per IFRS 9 185,393
Less: Provision (reversal) of loss allowance (39,098)
Less: Amount written off (5,533)
Balance at December 31, 2018 $ 140,762

The factored accounts receivable were as follows:
(In Thousands)

Factor Collected Discount
Factor Amount Amount Prepayments  Rate (%) Factor Limit

For the year ended

December 31, 2018
HSBC Bank US$ 42,640 US$ 39,855 - - USs$ 10,400
For the year ended

December 31, 2017
HSBC Bank US$ 41,383 US$ 35,711 - - US$ 12,800

Note: Recorded under other receivables.
The limit above was used on a revolving basis.

The factor was HSBC Bank (Taiwan) Limited. Thisesals without recourse.
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December 31, 2017

The Corporation applied the same credit policy@i&and 2017. For some trade receivable balanegs th
were past due at the end of the reporting peribe, Gorporation did not recognize an allowance for
impairment loss because there was no significaahgh in credit quality and the amounts were still
considered recoverable. The Corporation did nad boly collateral or other credit enhancementstesé
balances.

The aging of receivables was as follows:

December 31,

2017
Not past due $ 5,369,396
1-60 days 406,230
61-90 days 429
91-120 days 38,566
More than 120 days 14,309
$ 5,828,930

The above aging schedule was based on the numdaysfpast due at the end of the credit term.
The Corporation had no receivables that were pssbdt not impaired.

The movements of the allowance for doubtful traete=ivables were as follows:

Individually Collectively
Assessed for Assessed for
Impairment Impairment Total
Balance at January 1, 2017 $ - $ 160,871 $ 160,871
Add: Impairment losses recognized on
receivables - 24,522 24,522
Balance at December 31, 2017 $ - $ 185,393 $ 185,393

As of December 31, 2017, the Corporation recognimgghirment losses on individually impaired trade
receivables amounting to $0 thousand. These amouaisly pertained to customers that were in the
process of liquidation or experiencing severe fai@ndifficulties. The Corporation did not hold any

collateral over these receivables.

. INVENTORIES
December 31
2018 2017
Raw materials $ 4,239,740 $ 3,939,844
Work-in-process 1,942,660 1,293,814
Semifinished goods 1,271,222 1,880,843
Finished goods 37,450 71,502

$ 7491072 $ 7,186,003
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13.

14.

15.

The costs of inventories recognized as cost of g@ott for the years ended December 31, 2018 ahd 20

was $31,652,858 thousand and $30,324,437 thousesykctively. The costs of goods sold for the years
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 included invemoitg-downs of $92,379 thousand and $19,396
thousand, respectively.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS - NON-CURRE NT
December 31,
2017
Private equity
Domestic listed common shares $ 434,763

The Corporation obtained shares issued by Apacehnnidogy Inc. in a private placement. Under Article
43-8 of the Securities and Exchange Act, the teansffthese shares is restricted.

FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT COST - NON-CURRENT
December 31,
2017
Domestic unlisted common shares $ 296,380
Overseas unlisted common shares 91,036
Domestic private equity fund 60,000
$ 447,416
Classified according to financial asset measuremetegories
Available-for-sale $ 447,416

Management believed that the above unlisted egouigstments held by the Corporation had fair values
which could not be reliably measured, becauseahge of reasonable fair value estimates was Svgmifi
Therefore, they were measured at cost less impatratehe end of the reporting period.

In 2017, the Corporation disposed of certain finanassets measured at cost with a total carrymguet
of $6,770 thousand.

In 2017, the Corporation recognized an impairmess lof $147,890 thousand on the above unlistedyequi
investments.

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METH OD

December 31

2018 2017
Investments in subsidiaries $ 1,843,167 $ 1614,888
Investments in associates $ 1,298,263 $ 1,693,094
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a. Investments in subsidiaries

December 31

2018 2017

Unlisted shares

Global Flash Limited $ 628,701 $ 626,167
Lian Xu Dong Investment Corporation 484,367 614,104
Emtops Electronics Corp. 71,102 70,108
Phisontech Electronics (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. 64,275 62,707
Power Flash (Samoa) Limited 101,359 97,848
Everspeed Technology Limited 252,981 139,985
Phison Electronics Japan Corp. 34,764 3,969
Regis Investment (Samoa) Limited 205,618 -

$ 1,843,167 $ 1,614,888

At the end of the reporting period, the proportiofi$wnership and voting rights in subsidiariesdhel
by the Corporation were as follows:

December 31

Name of Subsidiaries 2018 2017
Global Flash Limited 100% 100%
Lian Xu Dong Investment Corporation 100% 100%
Emtops Electronics Corp. 100% 100%
Phisontech Electronics (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. 100% 100%
Power Flash (Samoa) Limited 100% 100%
Everspeed Technology Limited 100% 100%
Phison Electronics Japan Corp. 100% 100%
Regis Investment (Samoa) Limited 100% -

In March 2018, the Corporation invested in Regigebiment (Samoa) Limited, which is principally
engaged in investment services.

Except for Global Flash Limited, Power Flash (Sajridaited, Everspeed Technology Limited and
Regis Investment (Samoa) Limited, which were cali@d based on the financial statements which
have not been audited, other investments accodotading the equity method and the share of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of thosestnvents held by the Corporation were calculated
based on the financial statements which have bedited. Management believes there will be no
material impact on the equity method of accountinghe calculation of the share of profit or lossl a
other comprehensive income if the financial stat@sef Global Flash Limited, Power Flash (Samoa)
Limited, Everspeed Technology Limited and Regisebtment (Samoa) Limited were to be audited.

b. Investments in associates

December 31

2018 2017
Unlisted shares
Kingston Solutions Inc. $ 1,257,971 $ 1,623,790
Epostar Electronics (BVI) Corporation 17,596 47,741
Microtops Design Corporation (“Microtops”) 22,696 21,563

$ 1,298,263 $ 1,693,094
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Refer to Table 5 “Information on Investees” for tieure of activities, principal place of businassl
country of incorporation of the associates.

As of December 31, 2018, no investments in assxiaere individually material to the Corporation.

As of December 31, 2017, the summarized financifdrmation below represents amounts shown in
the associates’ financial statements preparedaardance with IFRSs adjusted by the Corporation for
equity accounting purposes.

1) Material associates

Kingston Solutions Inc.

December 31,

2017
Current assets $ 6,703,051
Non-current assets 149,930
Current liabilities (1,250,947)
Non-current liabilities (668,003)
Equity $ 4,934,031
Equity attributable to the Corporation $ 1,623,790
For the Year
Ended
December 31,
2017
Operating revenue $ 20,205,762
Net profit for the year $ 1,441,523
Other comprehensive loss (92)
Total comprehensive income for the year $ 1,441,431

2) Aggregate information of associates that ardandividually material

For the Year Ended December 31

2018 2017
The Corporation’s share of:
Net loss for the year $ (174,924) $ (46,456)
Other comprehensive income (loss) (745) 14
Total comprehensive loss for the year $ (175,669) $ (46,442)

The fiscal year end date for Microtops is March Bar the purpose of applying the equity method of
accounting, the consolidated financial statemehtsliorotops as of March 31, 2018 and 2017 have
been used as the Corporation considers thatripsacticable for Microtops to prepare a separédtefse
financial statements as of December 31. Appropadjastments have been made accordingly for the
effects of significant transactions between thastesland December 31, 2018 and 2017.

All the associates are accounted for using thetequethod.
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Flexmedia Electronics Corporation held a sharehsldeeeting on February 25, 2016 for the approval
of liquidation, and completed liquidation processasAugust 29, 2018.

The Corporation’s share of losses of an assod@dtmited to its interest in that associate. Theants
of unrecognized share of losses of those assooiteacted from the relevant unaudited financial
statements of associates, both for the period amdilatively, were as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31

2018 2017
Unrecognized share of losses of associates forghe $ - $ 1,273
Accumulated unrecognized share of losses of agsscia $ 1,273 $ 1,273

The investments accounted for using the equity atetand the share of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of those investments for t#tersyended December 31, 2018 and 2017 were
based on the subsidiaries’ financial statementgexitbr the same years.

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land Testing Office Other Construction

Land Improvements Buildings Equipment Equipment Equipment in Progress Total
Cost
Balance, January 1, 2017 $ 813,738 $ 28,775 $ 1,142,341 $ 327,038 $ 31,949 $ 14,314 $ 390,000 $ 2,748,155
Additions - - 82,635 97,015 13,743 12,652 351,000 557,045
Disposals - - - (45,713) (5,498) - - (51,211)
Reclassification - - 741,000 (291) - (741,000) (291)
Balance, December 31, 2017 $ 813,738 $ 28,775 $ 1,965,976 $ 378,049 $ 40,194 $ 26,966 $ - $ 3,253,698
Accumulated depreciation
Balance, January 1, 2017 $ - $ 17,242 $ 187,260 $ 131,626 $ 14,126 $ 5,098 $ - $ 355,352
Disposals - - - (45,713) (5,498) - - (51,211)
Depreciation - 3,684 45,813 90,196 11,528 5,234 - 156.455
Balance, December 31, 2017 $ - $ 20,926 $ 233,073 $ 176,109 $ 20,156 $ 10,332 $ - $ 460,596
Balance, December 31, 2017, net $ 813,738 $ 7,849 $ 1,732,903 $ 201,940 $ 20,038 $ 16,634 $ - $ 2,793,102
Cost
Balance, January 1, 2018 $ 813,738 $ 28,775 $ 1,965,976 $ 378,049 $ 40,194 $ 26,966 $ - $ 3,253,698
Additions - - 79,495 267,500 14,623 13,357 - 374,975
Disposals - (5,095) - (42,359) (9,994) (188) - (57,636)
Reclassification - - 1,585 - - - 1,585
Balance, December 31, 2018 $ 813,738 $ 23,680 $ 2,045,471 $ 604,775 $ 44,823 $ 40,135 $ - $ 3,572,622
Accumulated depreciation
Balance, January 1, 2018 $ - $ 20,926 $ 233,073 $ 176,109 $ 20,156 $ 10,332 $ - $ 460,596
Disposals - (5,095) - (42,180) (9,994) (188) - (57,457)
Depreciation - 3,472 56,845 125,299 14,085 8,652 - 208,353
Balance, December 31, 2018 $ - $ 19,303 $ 289,918 $ 259,228 $ 24,247 $ 18,796 $ - $ 611,492
Balance, December 31, 2018, net $ 813,738 $ 4,377 $ 1,755,553 $ 345,547 $ 20,576 $ 21,339 $ - $ 2,961,130

The above items of property, plant and equipmept depreciated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Land improvements 7 years
Buildings 20-50 years
Buildings - electrical engineering 20 years
Testing equipment 3 years
Office equipment 3 years
Other equipment 3-5 years
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17.

18.

19.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer software
Technology license fees

Balance at January 1, 2017
Additions
Amortization

Balance, December 31, 2017
Balance at January 1, 2018
Additions

Amortization

Balance, December 31, 2018

December 31

2018
$ 110,317
39,064
$ 149,381
Computer Technology
Software License Fees
$ 126,879 $ 90,884
123,172 34,826
(102,561) (61,092)
$ 147,490 $ 64,618
$ 147,490 $ 64,618
112,378 23,331
(149,551) (48,885)
$ 110,317 $ 39,064

2017

$ 147,490
64,618

$ 212,108

Total

$ 217,763
157,998

(163,653)
$ 212,108

$ 212,108
135,709

(198,436)
$ 149,381

The above items of intangible assets are amortized straight-line basis over the following estiadht

useful lives of the assets:
Computer software

Technology license fees

OTHER PAYABLES

Salaries and bonuses payable
Others

OTHER LIABILITIES

Current

Other payables
Refund liabilities (Note 20)
Payables for purchases of equipment
Receipts under custody
Others

1-5 years
1-8 years
December 31
2018 2017
$ 2,386,479 $ 2,576,430
904,389 670,024
$ 3,290,868 $ 3,246,454
December 31
2018 2017
$ 185,919 $ -
30,295 11,049
31,029 89,635
50,473 57,062
$ 297,716  $ 157,746
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20. PROVISIONS - CURRENT

December 31
2018 2017

Sales returns and allowances $ - $ 292,081

For the Year
Ended
December 31,
2017

Balance at January 1 $ 344,076
Additional provisions recognized 238,449

Usage (290,444)
Balance at December 31 $ 292,081

Prior to 2017, provisions for sales returns andvedinces are estimated based on historical expetienc
management’s judgment, and any known factors tlealdvsignificantly affect returns and allowances an
are recognized as a reduction of revenue in the ggmod of the related product sales.

The Corporation applied IFRS 15 since 2018, ancestienated sales returns and provisions are repedni
as refund liabilities (other current liabilities).

21. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS
a. Defined contribution plan

The Corporation adopted a pension plan under theol#@ension Act (the “LPA”"), which is a
state-managed defined contribution plan. UnderltRd, an entity makes monthly contributions to
employees’ individual pension accounts at 6% of tilgrsalaries and wages.

b. Defined benefit plan

The defined benefit plan adopted by the Corporaitioaccordance with the Labor Standards Law is
operated by the government of the ROC. Pensionfiteee calculated on the basis of the length of
service and average monthly salaries of the sixthsobefore retirement. The Corporation contributes
amounts equal to 2% of total monthly salaries anges to a pension fund administered by the pension
fund monitoring committee. Pension contributiong aleposited in the Bank of Taiwan in the
committee’s name. Before the end of each yearCibiporation assesses the balance in the pension
fund. If the amount of the balance in the pensiondfis inadequate to pay retirement benefits for
employees who conform to retirement requirementeemext year, the Corporation is required to fund
the difference in one appropriation that shouldviz@le before the end of March of the next year. The
pension fund is managed by the Bureau of Labor &uiinistry of Labor (“the Bureau”); the
Corporation has no right to influence the investopaticy and strategy.
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The amounts included in the balance sheets in cespéhe Corporation’s defined benefit plan wese a

follows:

December 31

2018 2017
Present value of defined benefit obligation $ 127,656 $ 116,566
Fair value of plan assets (34,829) (31,669)
Net defined benefit liabilities $ 92,827 $ 84,897
Movements in net defined benefit liabilities (as}stere as follows:
Present Value Net Defined
of the Defined Benefit
Benefit Fair Value of Liabilities
Obligation the Plan Assets (Assets)
Balance at January 1, 2017 $ 102,213 $ (29,488) $ 72,725
Service costs
Current service costs 4,456 - 4,456
Net interest expense (income) 1,840 (531) 1,309
Recognized in profit or loss 6,296 (531) 5,765
Remeasurement
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest) - 231 231
Actuarial loss - changes in financial
assumptions 8,786 - 8,786
Actuarial loss - experience adjustments (729) - (729)
Recognized in other comprehensive income 8,057 231 8,288
Contributions from the employer - (1,881) (1,881)
Balance at December 31, 2017 $ 116,566 $ (31,669) $ 84,897
Balance at January 1, 2018 $ 116,566 $ (31,669) $ 84,897
Service costs
Current service costs 4,954 - 4,954
Net interest expense (income) 1,633 (443) 1,190
Recognized in profit or loss 6,587 (443) 6,144
Remeasurement
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest) - (802) (802)
Actuarial loss - changes in financial
assumptions 4,695 - 4,695
Actuarial loss - experience adjustments (192) - (192)
Recognized in other comprehensive income 4,503 (802) 3,701
Contributions from the employer - (1,915) (1,915)
Balance at December 31, 2018 $ 127,656 $ (34,829) $ 92,827
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An analysis by function of the amounts recognizegdrfit or loss in respect of the defined bengiin
is as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31

2018 2017
Operating costs $ 859 $ 723
Marketing expenses 716 685
Administrative expenses 1,597 1,561
Research and development expenses 2972 2,796

$ 6,144 $ 5,765

Recognized in other comprehensive income was ara@at loss of $1,530 thousand in 2018 and an
actuarial loss of $6,880 thousand in 2017. The datime amount of actuarial loss recognized in other
comprehensive income as of December 31, 2018 ahid \®@s $41,127 thousand and $39,597 thousand,
respectively.

Through the defined benefit plan under the Laban&ards Law, the Corporation is exposed to the
following risks:

1) Investment risk: The plan assets are investedomestic and foreign equity and debt securities,
bank deposits, etc. The investment is conductethatdiscretion of the Bureau or under the
mandated management. However, in accordance wébarg regulations, the return generated by
plan assets should not be below the interest oate 2-year time deposit with local banks.

2) Interest risk: A decrease in the government Hotetest rate will increase the present valuehef t
defined benefit obligation; however, this will barpally offset by an increase in the return on the
plan’s debt investments.

3) Salary risk: The present value of the definedelfie obligation is calculated by reference to the
future salaries of plan participants. As such, rardase in the salary of the plan participants will
increase the present value of the defined benlgliyation.

The actuarial valuations of the present value ef diefined benefit obligation were carried out by
qualified actuaries. The significant assumptiorexduer the purposes of the actuarial valuationsevesr
follows:

December 31

2018 2017
Discount rate 1.20% 1.40%
Expected rate of salary increase 4.00% 4.00%
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If possible reasonable change in each of the sogmif actuarial assumptions will occur and all othe
assumptions will remain constant, the present valuthe defined benefit obligation would increase
(decrease) as follows:

December 31

2018 2017
Discount rate
0.25% increase $ (5,838) $ (5,582)
0.25% decrease $ 6,160 $ 5,902
Expected rate of salary increase
0.25% increase $ 5,655 $ 5,443
0.25% decrease $ (5,404) $ (5,191)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may nokepeesentative of the actual change in the present
value of the defined benefit obligation as it idikely that the change in assumptions would ocaour i
isolation of one another as some of the assumpti@ysbe correlated.

December 31

2018 2017
The expected contributions to the plan for the yexr $ 2,097 $ 1,888
The average duration of the defined benefit obilogat 19 years 20 years

22. EQUITY
a. Share capital

Common shares
December 31

2018 2017
Number of shares authorized (in thousands) 230,000 230,000
Amount of shares authorized $ 2,300,000 $ 2,300,000
Number of shares issued and fully paid (in thousand 197,074 197,074
Amount of shares issued $ 1,970,740 $ 1,970,740

On November 13, 2017, an employee share option \gapproved by the Corporation’s board of

directors, and the Financial Supervisory Commisgle®C) also approved this plan as shown in the
FSC's issued document No. 1060047052 and was éctdiiorn December 5, 2017. In accordance with

Article 55, No. 2 of the Regulations Governing th#fering and Issuance of Securities by Securities

Issuers and the regulations of the issuance of@mplshare options in 2017, shares can be issugd as
whole or in parts depending on the actual needkiwithe year starting from the date the issuer

received the notification of approval from the catgnmt authorities. The employee share options were
not issued because a very high cost of issuancé&vbauincurred. The employee share options cannot
be issued after December 4, 2018.

On November 13, 2018, an employee share option \gapproved by the Corporation’s board of
directors, and the Financial Supervisory Commisgle®C) also approved this plan as shown in the
FSC’s issued document No. 1070344165 and will tfitect starting from November 28, 2018. In
accordance with Article 55, No. 2 of the Regulasi@overning the Offering and Issuance of Securities
by Securities Issuers and the regulations of thaaisce of employee share options in 2018, shares ca
be issued as a whole or in parts depending ondivalaneeds within the year starting from the diage
issuer received the notification of approval frdra tompetent authorities.
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Fully paid common shares, which have a par valugT#10, carry one vote per share and carry a right
to dividends.

Of the Corporation’s authorized capital sharesQQ®,thousand shares were reserved for the issuance
of employee share options.

Capital surplus

December 31
2018 2017

May be used to offset a deficit, distributed ashadisidends, or
transferred to share capital*

Issuance of common shares $ 6,237,434 $ 6,237,434
The difference between the consideration receivezhinl and

the carrying amount of the subsidiaries’ net asdetisng

actual disposal or acquisition 148,758 148,758

May only be used to offset a deficit

Expired share options 227 227

May not be used for any purpose

Share of changes in capital surplus of associatgsn ventures 288,231 274,083

$ 6,674,650 $ 6,660,502

*  Such capital surplus may be used to offset acdgfin addition, when the Corporation has no
deficit, such capital surplus may be distributedcash dividends or transferred to share capital
(limited to a certain percentage of the Corporasi@apital surplus and once a year).

Retained earnings and dividend policy

Under the dividends policy as set forth in the adeehArticles, where the Corporation made a prafit i

a fiscal year, the profit shall be first utilizear fpaying taxes, offsetting losses of previous yesetting
aside as legal reserve 10% of the remaining preétfing aside or reversing a special reserve in
accordance with the laws and regulations, and amgrremaining profit together with any undistrikalite
retained earnings shall be used by the Corporatiboard of directors as the basis for proposing a
distribution plan, which should be resolved in thlgareholders’ meeting for the distribution of
dividends and bonus to shareholders. For the pslion distribution of employees’ compensation and
remuneration to directors and supervisors befodeadtier amendment, refer to Note 24 (e) “employees’
compensation and remuneration of directors andregisoes”.

The Corporation’s dividend distribution policy takdnto consideration the current and future

investment environment, capital requirements, ddimesd international competition, capital budget

plans, shareholders’ interests, the balance betwetaned earnings and dividends, and the
Corporation’s long-term financial plans. In accorda with the laws and regulations, the board of
directors propose a distribution plan on an anbasis, which should be resolved in the sharehader’

meeting. Profits may be distributed as cash oresdardends; however, cash dividends should be at
least 10% of the total dividends distributed.

The Corporation appropriates or reverses a spegsalrve in accordance with Rule No. 1010012865

issued by the Financial Supervisory Commissiontrbistions can be made out of any subsequent
reversal of the debit to other equity items.
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A legal reserve may be used to offset deficitthdf Corporation has no deficit and the legal resdias
exceeded 25% of the Corporation’s paid-in capitak excess may be transferred to capital or
distributed in cash.

The appropriations of earnings for 2017 and 201&kvivere approved in the shareholders’ meeting on
June 8, 2018 and June 13, 2017, respectively, agfellows:

Appropriation of Earnings Dividends Per Share (NT$)
For Year 2017 For Year 2016 For Year 2017 For Year 2016
Legal reserve $ 576,097 $ 486,699
Reversal of special reserve (25,965) (85,393)
Cash dividends 3,350,258 2,759,036 $17 $14

The appropriation of earnings for 2018 had beempgsed by the Corporation’s board of directors on
March 21, 2019. The appropriation and dividendsspare were as follows:

Appropriation Dividends Per
of Earnings Share (NT$)

Legal reserve $ 431,812
Special reserve 380,927
Cash dividends 2,561,962 $13

The appropriation of earnings for 2018 are subgectthe resolution of the shareholders in the
shareholders’ meeting to be held on June 12, 2019.

Other equity items
1) Exchange differences on translating the findrst&tements of foreign operations

For the Year Ended December 31

2018 2017

Balance at January 1 $ (67,147) $ (66,816)
Effect of change in tax rate 2,426 -
Share of other comprehensive loss of subsidiarnds a

associates (3,975) (392)

Income tax relating to share of other comprehensise

of subsidiaries and associates 788 61
Balance at December 31 $ (67,908) $ (67,147)
2) Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-salefinial assets

Balance at January 1, 2017 $ 40,851
Recognized for the year

Unrealized gain arising on revaluation of availafolesale financial assets 62,712
Balance at December 31, 2017 $ 103,563
Balance at January 1, 2018 per IAS 39 $ 103,563
Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9 (103,563)
Balance at January 1, 2018 per IFRS 9 $ -
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3) Unrealized gain (loss) on financial assets at 6|

Balance at January 1 per IAS 39
Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9
Balance at January 1 per IFRS 9
Recognized during the period

Unrealized gain (loss) - equity instruments
Share from associates accounted for using theyeopgthod
Cumulative unrealized gain (loss) on equity insteats transferred to retained

earnings due to disposals

Cumulative unrealized gain (loss) on equity insteats transferred to retained
earnings due to disposals from subsidiaries

Balance at December 31

23. INCOME TAXES

a.

Income tax recognized in profit or loss

The major components of tax expense were as fallows

Current tax
In respect of the current year
Income tax on unappropriated earnings
Adjustments for prior periods

Deferred tax
In respect of the current year
Effect of change in tax rate

Income tax expense recognized in profit or loss
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For the Year

Ended

December 31,

2018
$ -

(316,201)

(316,201)

(106,094)
(63,357)

150,848

21,785

$ (313,019)

For the Year Ended December 31

2018

$ 657,085
185,370

(163,846)
678,609

53,562
(49,937)

3,625

$ 682,234

2017

$ 971,302
170,460

(104,686)
1,037,076
(84,843)
(84,843)

$ 952,233



A reconciliation of accounting profit and income &xpense for 2018 and 2017 is as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31

2018 2017

Profit before tax from continuing operations $ 5,000,353 $ 6,713,205
Income tax expense calculated at the statutory rate $ 1,000,071 $ 1,141,245
Tax-exempt income (289,424) (254,786)
Income tax on unappropriated earnings 185,370 170,460
Effect of change in tax rate (49,937) -

Adjustments for prior years’ tax (163,846) (104,686)
Income tax expense recognized in profit or loss $ 682,234 $ 952,233

In 2017, the applicable corporate income tax raeduby the Corporation in the ROC was 17%.
However, the Income Tax Act in the ROC was amendé&18, and the corporate income tax rate was
adjusted from 17% to 20%, effective in 2018. Iniaidd, the rate of the corporate surtax applicdble
the 2018 unappropriated earnings will be reducexh f£0% to 5%.

The appropriation of the 2019 earnings is uncergaid is subject to approval at the shareholders’
meeting; thus, the potential consequences of indaxen the 2018 unappropriated earnings are not
reliably determinable.

Income tax benefit recognized in other comprsivenincome

For the Year Ended December 31

2018 2017

Deferred income tax
Effect of change in tax rate $ 3,857 $ -
In respect of the current period

Share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries

associates 788 61

Actuarial gain on defined benefit plan 740 1,408
Total income tax expense recognized in other cohgmsive

income $ 5,385 $ 1,469

Current tax assets and liabilities

December 31

2018 2017
Current tax liabilities
Income tax payable $ 522579 $ 1,090,947
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d. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

The movements of deferred tax assets and defexxddhbilities were as follows:

For the year ended December 31, 2018

Deferred tax assets

Temporary differences
Doubtful accounts
Inventory write-downs
Refund liabilities
Defined benefit obligation
Unrealized exchange

losses
Impairment loss on
financial assets
Exchange differences on
translating foreign
operations
Share of losses of
subsidiaries and
associates
Unrealized gain on
transactions with
subsidiaries
Property, plant and
equipment

Recognized in

Other

Opening Recognized in Comprehensive
Balance Profit or Loss Income
$ 21,608 $ (4,211) $
52,567 27,752
49,654 (12,470) -
14,433 1,961 2,171
77,212 7,940
44,475 (12,674)
13,746 - 3,214
29,225 (16,115)
- 3,910
1,915 282
$ 304,835 $ (3,625) $ 5,385
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Closing
Balance

$ 17,397
80,319
37,184
18,565
85,152

31,801

16,960

13,110

3,910

2,197

$ 306,595



For the year ended December 31, 2017

Recognized in

Other
Opening Recognized in Comprehensive Closing
Balance Profit or Loss Income Balance
Deferred tax assets
Temporary differences
Doubtful accounts $ 18,975 $ 2,633 $ - $ 21,608
Inventory write-downs 49,270 3,297 - 52,567
Provisions 58,493 (8,839) - 49,654
Defined benefit obligation 12,363 662 1,408 14,433
Unrealized exchange
losses 17,767 59,445 - 77,212
Impairment loss on
financial assets 23,899 20,576 - 44,475

Exchange differences on

translating foreign

operations 13,685 - 61 13,746
Share of losses of

subsidiaries and

associates 22,108 7,117 - 29,225
Property, plant and
equipment 1,963 (48) - 1,915

$ 218,523 $ 84,843 $ 1,469 $ 304,835

e. Income tax returns through 2016 have been asbbgshe tax authorities.

24. NET PROFIT AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
The following items were included in net profit:

a. Other gains and losses

For the Year Ended December 31

2018 2017
Fair value changes of financial assets and finhhalzlities
Financial assets mandatorily classified as at FVTPL $ (11,605) $ -
Net foreign exchange gains (losses) 171,439 (357,532)
Losses on financial assets held for trading - (5,529)
Impairment losses recognized on financial assets - (147,890)
Others 1,404 158

$ 161,238 $ (510,793)
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b. Other income

Interest income
Bank deposits
Convertible bonds

Rental income

Dividend income

Others

c. Depreciation and amortization

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

An analysis of depreciation by function
Operating costs
Operating expenses

An analysis of amortization by function
General and administrative expenses
Research and development expenses

d. Employee benefits expense

Short-term employee benefits

Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plan
Defined benefit plan

Other employee benefits
Employee welfare
Food stipend
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For the Year Ended December 31

2018

$ 46,443
3,122
2,964

41,698
37,801

$ 132,028

2017

$ 38,504
3,605

29,947
17,749

$ 89,805

For the Year Ended December 31

2018

$ 208,353
198,436

$ 406,789

$ 45,880
162,473

$ 208,353

$ 7,899
190,537

$ 198,436

2017

$ 156,455
163,653

$ 320,108

$ 37,325
119,130

$ 156,455

$ 8,359
155,294

$ 163,653

For the Year Ended December 31

2018

$ 2,767,933

80,851

6,144

86,995

53,016
39,684
92,700

$ 2,947,628

2017
$ 3,424,548

67,832

5,765

73,597

53,249
35,170
88,419

$ 3,586,564
(Continued)



For the Year Ended December 31

2018 2017
Employee benefits
Recognized in operating costs $ 178,713 $ 166,677
Recognized in operating expenses 2,768,915 3,419,887

$ 2,947,628 $ 3,586,564
(Concluded)

Employees’ compensation and remuneration o€dire and supervisors

The Corporation accrued employees’ compensatiomemdneration of directors and supervisors at the
rates of 8%-19% and no higher than 1.5%, respdgfioé net profit before income tax, employees’
compensation, and remuneration of directors ancersigors. The employees’ compensation and
remuneration of directors and supervisors for &y ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, which have
been approved by the Corporation’s board of dimsctin March 21, 2019 and March 16, 2018,
respectively, were as follows:

Accrual rate

For the Year Ended December 31

2018 2017
Employees’ compensation 9.84% 9.00%
Remuneration of directors and supervisors 0.72% 0.81%
Amount
For the Year Ended December 31
2018 2017
Cash Shares Cash Shares

Employees’ compensation $ 550,000 $ - $ 670,000 $ -
Remuneration of directors and

supervisors 40,000 - 60,000 -

If there is a change in the amounts after the drimencial statements were authorized for isshe, t
differences are recorded as a change in the adngledtimate.

There was no difference between the actual amafremployees’ compensation and remuneration of
directors and supervisors paid and the amountggnémed in the financial statements for the years
ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Information on the employees’ compensation and resration of directors and supervisors resolved by

the Corporation’s board of directors in 2019 and&(@s available on the Market Observation Post
System website of the Taiwan Stock Exchange.
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f. Gains or losses on foreign currency exchange

For the Year Ended December 31

2018 2017
Foreign exchange gains $ 572,646 $ 404,352
Foreign exchange losses (401,207) (761,884)
Net gain (loss) $ 171,439 $ (357,532)

25. EARNINGS PER SHARE
(In New Taiwan Dollars)

For the Year Ended December 31

2018 2017
Basic earnings per share $21.91 $ 29.23
Diluted earnings per share $21.60 $ 28.83

The earnings and weighted-average number of comshanes outstanding used in the computation of
earnings per share were as follows:

Net Profit for the Year

For the Year Ended December 31

2018 2017
Earnings used in the computation of basic earnpegshare
Profit for the period attributable to owners of therporation $ 4,318,119 $ 5,760,972
Earnings used in the computation of diluted eamipey share
Profit for the period attributable to owners of therporation $ 4,318,119 $ 5,760,972
Shares

(In Thousands of Shares)

For the Year Ended December 31

2018 2017
Weighted-average number of common shares usee in th
computation of basic earnings per share 197,074 197,074
Effect of potentially dilutive common shares:
Employees’ compensation 2,867 2,766
Weighted-average humber of common shares usee in th
computation of dilutive earnings per share 199,941 199,840

If the Corporation offered to settle compensationbonuses paid to employees in cash or shares, the
Corporation assumed the entire amount of the cosgtiem or bonus will be settled in shares and the
resulting potential shares were included in theghieid-average number of shares outstanding ustn in
computation of diluted earnings per share, as ffexteis dilutive. Such dilutive effect of the potel
shares is included in the computation of dilutedniegs per share until the number of shares to be
distributed to employees is resolved in the follogvwyear.
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26. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Corporation manages its capital to ensure tti@tCorporation will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximizing the return to shareholddm®ugh the optimization of the debt and equity
balance.

The capital structure of the Corporation consistédnet debts (borrowings offset by cash and cash
equivalents) and equity (comprising share capitgbjtal surplus, retained earnings and other eguity

The Corporation is not subject to any externallpased capital requirements.
Key management personnel of the Corporation revfenwcapital structure on an annual basis. As dart o
this review, the key management personnel considecost of capital and the risks associated watthe
class of capital. Based on recommendations of therkanagement personnel, in order to balance the
overall capital structure, the Corporation may atjhe amount of dividends paid to shareholdersher
amount of new debt issued or existing debt redeemed
27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
a. Fair value of financial instruments not carrgdair value
The Corporation’s management considers the cargingunts recognized in the financial statements
for financial assets and financial liabilities roatrried at fair value to approximate their fairues or
their fair values cannot be reliably measured.
b. Fair value of financial instruments that are sugad at fair value on a recurring basis

1) Fair value hierarchy

December 31, 2018

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at FVTPL
Domestic listed shares $ 372994 $ - % - $ 372,994
Domestic unlisted shares - - 281,900 281,900
Overseas unlisted shares - - 54,231 54,231
Domestic private equity funds - - 47,366 47,366
Beneficiary certificates -
open-ended funds 2,520,850 - - 2,520,850
Convertible bonds - - 85,288 85,288
$ 2,893,844 $ - $ 468,785 $ 3,362,629

Financial assets at FVTOCI
Investments in equity

instruments
Domestic unlisted shares  $ - 3 - % 70,134 $ 70,134
Overseas unlisted shares - - 93,309 93,309

$ - 9 - $ 163443 $ 163,443
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2)

December 31, 2017

Financial assets at FVTPL

Domestic listed shares

Beneficiary certificates -

open-ended funds
Convertible bonds

Available-for-sale financial

assets

Unlisted debt securities - ROC $

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$ 67,095 $ - - 67,095
1,050,239 - - 1,050,239
- - 53,722 53,722
$ 1117334 $ - 53,722 $ 1,171,056
- 3 - $ 434763 $ 434,763

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and théoyears ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measuremsanftfinancial instruments

For the year ended December 31, 2018

Financial Assets

Balance at January 1, 2018
(IAS 39)

Transfers into Level 3
(Application IFRS 9)

Recognized in profit or loss
Other gains and losses

Recognized in other
comprehensive income
Unrealized loss on
financial assets at
FVTOCI

Purchases

Sales

Capital reduction and
refund of shares

Transfers out of Level 3

Balance at December 31,
2018
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Financial
Financial Assets at FVTPL Assets at
Derivatives - Derivatives - FVTOCI
Private Equity Convertible Equity Equity
Funds Bonds Instruments Instruments Total
$ - $ 53,722 $ 434,763 $ - $ 488,485
47,032 - 268,580 241,262 556,874
334 3,478 135,952 - 139,764
- - - (106,094) (106,094)
- 77,763 1,454 53,712 132,929
- (49,675) - (25,437) (75,112)
- - (69,855) - (69,855)
- - (434,763) - (434,763)
$ 47,366 $ 85,288 336,131 163,443 632,228



3)

For the year ended December 31, 2017

Available-for-
Financial Assets sale Financial
at FVTPL Assets
Convertible Equity
Bonds Instruments Total
Financial assets
Balance at January 1, 2017 $ - $ 372,051 $ 372,051
Purchase 49,675 - 49,675
Recognized in profit or loss
Other gains and losses 4,047 - 4,047
Recognized in other comprehensive
income
Unrealized gain arising on revaluation
of available-for-sale financial assets - 62,712 62,712
Balance at December 31, 2017 $ 53,722 $ 434,763 $ 488,485

Valuation techniques and inputs applied for L&/&ir value measurement

a)

b)

The fair values of convertible bonds are deteedhiusing Binary Tree Evaluation Model and
option pricing models where the significant unolsabete input is historical volatility. As of
December 31, 2018 and 2017, the historical vdiasli used was 58.61% and 46.75%,
respectively.

The fair values of unlisted debt securities -QR&e as follows:

December 31, 2017

Significant Relevance
Financial Valuation Unobservable  Quantitative  between Inputs  Sensitivity Analysis of Relation
Assets Techniques Inputs Information and Fair Value  between Inputs and Fair Values

Available-for- Market approach Lack of liquidity 8.92% The higher the ~ When lack of liquidity percentage

sale shares (price-earnings discount level of increases/decreases by 10%,
ratio and liquidity, the equity of the Corporation will
price-to-book lower the increase/decrease by $43,476
ratio method) estimation of thousand.

fair value

The fair values of unlisted equity securitiedomestic and foreign were determined using the
market approach. In accordance with the tradingepriof analogous subjects, taking the
difference of the unlisted equity securities andlagous subjects into consideration, the values
of the unlisted equity securities are estimatetigishe appropriate multiplier. The significant
unobservable inputs used are listed in the tabteabed decrease in the discount for the lack of
marketability used in isolation would result inianrease in fair value.

December 31
2018 2017

Discount for lack of marketability 15% Note

Note: The fair values were determined using theketaapproach starting from January 1,
2018, after the application of IFRS 9.
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d) The fair values of unlisted equity securitieforeign were determined using the income
approach. In this approach, the discounted cash fit@thod was used to capture the present
value of the expected future economic benefits @odbrived from the ownership of these
investees. The significant unobservable inputs @sedisted in the table below. Decreases in
the discount for non-controlling interests, thecdimt for lack of marketability and the
weighted-average cost of capital (WACC) would resuincreases in fair value. A decrease in
sustainable revenue growth rates would resultdaaease in fair value.

December 31

2018 2017
Discount for non-controlling interests 15% Note
Discount for lack of marketability 15% Note
Sustainable revenue growth rate 2% Note
WACC 13.7% Note

Note: The fair values were determined using therme approach starting from January 1,
2018, after the application of IFRS 9.

e) The fair values of unlisted equity securitiedomestic and foreign and private equity funds
were determined using the asset-based approaabrdér to reflect the overall value of the
Corporation or business, the total market valuthefindividual assets and individual liabilities
of the evaluation target are evaluated. The siggnifi unobservable inputs used are listed in the
table below. Decreases in the discount for nonrotlimyg interests and the discount for a lack
of marketability would result in increases in fealue.

December 31

2018 2017
Discount for non-controlling interests 10% Note
Discount for lack of marketability 10% Note

Note: The fair values were determined using thetasased approach starting from January 1,
2018, after the application of IFRS 9.

c. Categories of financial instruments

December 31

2018 2017

Financial assets
Financial assets at FVTPL

Held for trading $ - $ 1,171,056

Mandatorily at FVTPL 3,362,629 -
Loans and receivables (Note 1) - 18,685,141
Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 2) - 882,179
Financial assets at amortized cost (Note 3) 18,298,992 -
Financial assets at FVTOCI

Equity instruments 163,443 -
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortized cost (Note 4) 8,088,925 6,893,193
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Note 1: The balance includes loans and receivabéssured at amortized cost, which comprise cash and
cash equivalents, debt investments with no actiaeket, notes receivable, accounts receivable
and other receivables.

Note 2: The balance includes the carrying amounatvaflable-for-sale financial assets measuredstt co

Note 3: The balance includes financial assets medsat amortized cost, which comprise cash and cash
equivalents, notes receivable, accounts receiaideother receivables.

Note 4: The balances include financial liabilitiseasured at amortized cost, which comprise notes
payable, and trade and other payables.

d. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Pdicie

The Corporation’s major financial instruments imguequity investments, trade receivables, trade
payables and borrowings. The Corporation’s findntianagement department provides services to the
business unit and coordinates access the operatialmsnestic and international financial marketise T
risks include market risk (including foreign curegrrisk, interest rate risk and other price rigkgdit

risk and liquidity risk.

1) Market risk

The Corporation’s activities expose it primarilyttee financial risks of changes in currency rates
and interest rates.

a) Foreign currency risk

The Corporation had foreign currency sales andhases, which exposed the Corporation to
foreign currency risk. To avoid the decrease irifpr currency assets and adverse fluctuations
of future cash flows resulting from changes in iignecurrency exchange rates, the Corporation
used foreign currency borrowings to hedge riskiEign currency exchange rates. The gain or
loss caused by changes in foreign currency excheatge will be offset by profit or loss from
the hedge. As a result, the market risk is immakteri

The carrying amounts of the Corporation’s foreigmrency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities (including those eliminated @mnsolidation) and of the derivatives exposed
to foreign currency risk at the end of the repariieriod are set out in Note 32.

Sensitivity analysis

The Corporation was mainly exposed to the U.Sadoll
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b)

The following table details the Corporation’s sémgy to a 6% increase and decrease in the
New Taiwan dollar (the functional currency) agaiisé relevant foreign currencies. The

sensitivity rate of 6% used when reporting foreggmrency risk internally to key management

personnel and represents management’s assessmém ofasonably possible change. The
sensitivity analysis included only outstanding fgnecurrency denominated monetary items
and adjusts its translation at the end of the tempperiod for a 6% change in foreign currency
rates. A positive number below indicates a decraapee-tax profit and other equity associated
with the New Taiwan dollar strengthens 6% againstrelevant currency. For a 6% weakening
of the New Taiwan dollar against the relevant aurye there would be an equal and opposite
impact on pre-tax profit and other equity and thkabces below would be negative.

Impact of USD
For the Year Ended December 31
2018 2017

Profit or loss $ 235,207 $ 332,100
Interest rate risk

The Corporation was exposed to interest rate restabse the Corporation borrowed funds at
both fixed and floating interest rates.

The carrying amounts of the Corporation’s financéssets and financial liabilities with
exposure to interest rates at the end of the riggggperiod were as follows:

December 31

2018 2017
Fair value interest rate risk
Financial assets $ 4,852,082 $ 4,334,994
Cash flow interest rate risk
Financial assets 7,956,746 8,440,053

Sensitivity analysis

If interest rates had been 1 basis point higher ahdther variables were held constant, the
Corporation’s pre-tax profit for the years endedc®uaber 31, 2018 and 2017 would have
increased by $796 thousand and $844 thousand ctashg.

Other price risk
The Corporation was exposed to equity price risksugh its investments in international and
domestic listed and unlisted stock, convertible dsonprivate equity funds and beneficial

certificates.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below was determined basedhe Corporation’s exposure to equity
price risks at the end of the reporting period.

If equity prices had been 1% higher/lower, prefiecfit for the year ended December 31, 2018
would have increased/decreased by $33,626 thouaaralresult of the changes in fair value of
financial assets at FVTPL, and the pre-tax othengrehensive income for the year ended
December 31, 2018 would have increased/decreasesll 634 thousand, as a result of the
changes in fair value of financial assets at FVT.OCI
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2)

3)

If equity prices had been 1% higher/lower, prefecfit for the year ended December 31, 2017
would have increased/decreased by $11,711 thouaaralresult of the changes in fair value of
held-for-trading investments, and the pre-tax ottmnprehensive income for the year ended
December 31, 2017 would increase/decrease by $4h@d3and, as a result of the changes in
fair value of available-for-sale investments.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterpavily default on its contractual obligations, resudf in a
financial loss to the Corporation. As at the endhaf reporting period, the Corporation’s maximum
exposure to credit risk, which would cause a fima@nioss to the Corporation due to a failure of a
counterparty to discharge an obligation and fineinguarantees provided by the Corporation, comes
from the carrying amounts of the respective reczaphifinancial assets as stated in the parent cogmpan
only balance sheets

The targets of the aforementioned evaluation awanfiial assets that could potentially be influenogd
the Corporation’s counterparties defaulting onrtieentractual obligations and contracts with pusiti
fair values as of the balance sheet date. The messoof the Corporation are financial institutiars
manufacturers with good credit ratings; and thiusre is no expected material credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The Corporation manages liquidity risk by monitgriand maintaining a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate to finance the Composatoperations and mitigate the effects of

fluctuations in cash flows. In addition, managemewnitors the utilization of bank borrowings and

ensures compliance with loan covenants. The Catiparaelies on bank borrowings as a significant

source of liquidity. As of December 31, 2018 andl20the Corporation had available unutilized

overdraft and short-term bank loan facilities opapximately $7,887,200 thousand and $6,785,500
thousand, respectively.

Liquidity and interest risk rate tables

The following tables detail the Corporation’s reniag contractual maturities for its non-derivative

financial liabilities with agreed upon repaymentripds. The tables were drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilitiesrn the earliest date on which the Corporation can b
required to pay.

December 31, 2018

On Demand
or Less Than 3 Months to More Than
1 Month 1-3 Months 1 Year 1-5 Years 5 Years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Non-interest bearing liabilities $ 3,827,886 $ 2,845240 $ 1,938,378 $ -8 -
December 31, 2017
On Demand
or Less Than 3 Months to More Than
1 Month 1-3 Months 1 Year 1-5 Years 5 Years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Non-interest bearing liabilities $ 2,628,330 $ 2,397,428 $ 2,958,382 $ -8 -

Information on Transfers of Financial Assets

Refer to Note 11 for more information relating be {Corporation’s factored trade receivables.
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28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Besides information disclosed elsewhere in theratbées, details of transactions between the Catjmor
and other related parties are disclosed below.

a. Related parties and their relationships withGbeporation

Related Party

Relationship

Toshiba International Procurement Hong Kong, Ltd.
Toshiba Memory America, Inc.

Toshiba Singapore Pte. Ltd.

Toshiba Corporation, Japan

Toshiba Client Solutions ANZ Pty Limited
Toshiba Memory Corporation

Toshiba America Electronic Components, Inc.
Toshiba (Australia) Pty Limited

Toshiba Memory Taiwan Corporation
Toshiba Electronic Components Taiwan Corporation
Orient Semiconductor Electronics Ltd.
Dawning Leading Technology Inc.

Apacer Technology Inc.

Kingston Solutions Inc.

PMS Technology Corporation

Microtops Design Corporation

Epostar Electronics Corporation

Lian Xu Dong Investment Corporation
Phisontech Electronics (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.
Hefei Ruhan Electronic Technology Limited
Emtops Electronics Corp.

Ostek Corporation

Phisontech Electronics Taiwan Corp.

Hefei Core Storage Electronic Limited
Memoryexchange Corporation

Other related party
Other related party
Other related party
Other related party
Otherated party
Other related party

Otktated party
Other related part
Other relatatyp
the®related party
Other ralgparty
Other related ypéxote)
Other related party
Associate
Associate
Associate
Associate
Subsidiary
Suasid
Subsgiglia
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary

The dissolution of Dawning Leading Technoldgg. was approved in their shareholders’
meeting held on August 29, 2018 and the date ofjenewas set as November 1, 2018; thus,
starting from November 1, Dawning Leading Technglbte. was no longer a related party of
the Corporation.

Note:

b. Operating revenue

For the Year Ended December 31

2018 2017
Related party category
Subsidiaries $ 399,107 $ 533,925
Associates 88,762 22,380
Other related parties 1,831,022 1,855,850
$ 2,318,891 $ 2,412,155

The terms of sales to related parties were sirtoléinose for third parties.
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c. Operating costs
1) Purchase of goods

For the Year Ended December 31

2018 2017
Related party category
Subsidiaries $ 6,643 $ 35,993
Associates 689,883 293,119
Other related parties
Toshiba Memory Taiwan Corporation 13,871,205 3,210,897
Toshiba Memory America, Inc. 4,468,490 921,246
Toshiba Electronic Components Taiwan Corporation 168 12,335,671
Others 4,185 2,795,019

$ 19,040,574 $ 19,591,945

2) Processing costs

For the Year Ended December 31

2018 2017
Related party category
Subsidiaries $ 24,977 $ 23,405
Associates 185 1,330
Other related parties 1,758,073 1,387,601

$ 1,783,235 $ 1,412,336
The terms of operating costs from related partiesevgimilar to those for third parties.

d. Receivables from related parties

December 31

2018 2017
Related party category
Subsidiaries $ 39,353 $ 17,891
Associates 81,354 465
Other related parties 262,895 317,686

383,602 336,042

The outstanding trade receivables from relatedigsarare unsecured. No bad debt expense was
recognized for the allowance for impaired tradeenegbles with respect to the amounts owed by relate
parties.
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e. Payables to related parties

December 31

2018 2017
Related party category
Subsidiaries $ 5,621 $ 5,188
Associates 134,362 24,959
Other related parties
Toshiba Memory Taiwan Corporation 2,077,768 2,105,363
Others 644,014 430,216

$ 2,861,765 $ 2,565,726
The outstanding trade payables from related paatiesinsecured.
f. Compensation of key management personnel

For the Year Ended December 31

2018 2017
Short-term employee benefits $ 188,245 $ 280,848
Post-employment benefits 1,803 1,436
Other employee benefits 4,288 4,869

$ 194,336 $ 287,153
The remuneration of directors and key executives dedermined by the remuneration committee based
on the performance of individuals and market trends
29. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
a. The Corporation as lessee
The Corporation’s lease contracts for a factory amoffice expire on December 31, 2022.
The future minimum lease payments of non-cancealapkrating lease commitments were as follows:

December 31

2018 2017
Not later than 1 year $ 8,455 $ 9,124
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 17,824 25,076

26,279 $ 34,200

b. The Corporation as lessor

All operating leases relate to the property owngdhe Corporation, and such leases will expire on
December 31, 2019.

For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 201 dimoration individually recognized guarantee
on trade receivables of $335 thousand and $465#mul) respectively.
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30.

31.

The future minimum lease receivables of non-caab#dloperating leases were as follows:

December 31

2018 2017
Not later than 1 year $ 2432 $ 3,163

ASSETS PLEDGED AS COLLATERAL OR FOR SECURITY
The following assets were provided as collaterattie tariff of imported raw materials:

December 31

2018 2017
Refundable deposits for the Customs Duty Bureartificates of
deposit (financial assets at amortized cost) $ 20,356 $ -
Refundable deposits for the Customs Duty Bureartificates of
deposit (debt investments with no active market) - 20,549

20,356 $ 20,549

SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND UNRECOGN IZED COMMITMENTS

In addition to those disclosed in other notes, ifiant commitments and contingencies of the Caaion
as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 were as follows:

Significant Commitments

December 31

2018 2017
Unused letters of credit $ 1,670,000 $ 2,046,500
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32. SIGNIFICANT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES DENOMINATED IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES
The Corporation’s monetary financial assets arliiles denominated in foreign currencies aggreddty
the foreign currencies other than functional curres and the related exchange rates between foreign
currencies and respective functional currenciegwasrfollows:

(New Taiwan Dollars and Foreign Currencies in Thouands)

December 31, 2018

Foreign New Taiwan
Currency Exchange Rates Dollars
Financial assets
Monetary
UsD $ 234,373 30.715 $ 7,198,760
CNY 23,545 4.472 105,292
Financial liabilities
Monetary
uUsD 106,744 30.715 3,278,640
December 31, 2017
Foreign New Taiwan
Currency Exchange Rates Dollars
Financial assets
Monetary
uUsD $ 281,943 29.7600 $ 8,390,630
CNY 23,370 4.5650 106,684
Financial liabilities
Monetary
UsD 95,955 29.7600 2,855,622

33. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

In April 2018, Macronix International Co., Ltd. ased the Corporation of infringement of one opisgent
rights. In October 2018, Macronix International Cbtd. withdrew the lawsuit. Therefore, the Taiwan
Intellectual Property Court has terminated the case

The Corporation has been under statutory invesbigaince August 5, 2016 for an alleged violatiérhe
Securities and Exchange Act, and the investigati@s conducted by the Taiwan Hsinchu District
Prosecutorial Office and concluded on August 31,72@ccording to the press release announcememt fro
the Taiwan Hsinchu District Prosecutorial Office $@ptember 1, 2017, under the Securities and Egehan
Act and related provisions in the Criminal Codee girosecutor charged the chairman of the Corparatio
and others culminating in either deferred prosecutir the dropping of the claim for further prostmu
The Taiwan Hsinchu District Prosecutorial Officeakcio sent the ruling to the Taiwan High Prosecs
Office for reconsideration. As of November 18, 2017 regard to the partial revocation and patrtial
dismissal charge by the Taiwan High Court Prose@it@ffice against the chairman of the Corporation
and others, the case is under re-investigation tlaadinancial position and operations of the Coagion
are not affected in respect of this matter.
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34. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

a.

b.

Information about significant transactions ameestees:
1) Financing provided to others. (None)
2) Endorsement/guarantees provided. (None)

3) Marketable securities held (excluding investtaein subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures).
(Table 1)

4) Marketable securities acquired or disposedt @bats or prices of at least NT$300 million or 20%
of the paid-in capital. (Table 2)

5) Acquisition of individual real estate at cosisat least NT$300 million or 20% of the paid-in
capital. (None)

6) Disposals of individual real estate at prickatdeast NT$300 million or 20% of the paid-in d¢ap
(None)

7) Total purchases from or sales to related madimounting to at least NT$100 million or 20% af th
paid-in capital. (Table 3)

8) Receivables from related parties amounting ttdeast NT$100 million or 20% of the paid-in
capital. (Table 4)

9) Trading in derivative instruments. (None)
10) Information of investees. (Table 5)
Information on investments in mainland China:
1) Information on any investee company in mainl&@idna, showing the name, principal business
activities, paid-in capital, method of investmemward and outward remittance of funds,
ownership percentage, net income of investeessimant income or loss, carrying amount of the

investment at the end of the period, repatriatimhisivestment income, and limit on the amount of
investments in the mainland China area. (Table 6)

2) Any of the following significant transactions tiviinvestee companies in mainland China, either

directly or indirectly through a third party, arftetr prices, payment terms, and unrealized gains or
losses. (Table 7)

a) The amount and percentage of purchases andidweck and percentage of the related payables
at the end of the period.

b) The amount and percentage of sales and thedeatamil percentage of the related receivables at
the end of the period.

¢) The amount of property transactions and the amofuthe resultant gains or losses.

d) The balance of negotiable instrument endorsesnguiarantees or pledges of collateral at the
end of the period and their purposes.
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e) The highest balance, the end of period balaheeinterest rate range, and total current period
interest with respect to financing of funds.

f) Other transactions that have a material effectttee profit or loss for the period or on the
financial position, such as the rendering or receiervices.
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PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP.

MARKETABLE SECURITIES HELD (EXCLUDING INVESTMENTS |

DECEMBER 31, 2018

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless State@therwise)

N SUBSIDIARIES)

TABLE 1

Relationship with the

December 31, 2018

Carrying
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. Marketable Securities Type/ . . .
Holding Company Name - Financial Statement Account Shares or Units Percentage of Note
Name and Issuer (Note 1) Holding Company (In Thousands) Amount Ownership (%) Market Value
(Note 2)
Phison Electronics Corp. |__Beneficiary certificates
Mega Diamond Money Market Fund - Financial asaeBVTPL - current 16,326 $ 204,436 - $ 288, |Note 3
FSITC Taiwan Money Market Fund - Financial ass¢fSVTPL - current 13,369 204,235 - 208,23 Note 3
Franklin Templeton SinoAm Money Market - Financial assets at FVTPL - current 20,685 213,487 - 213,487 | Note 3
Fund
Yuanta De-Li Money Market Fund - Financial assatEVTPL - current 9,298 151,380 - 151,38MWNote 3
Jih Sun Money Market Fund - Financial assets atfV- current 13,767 203,655 - 203,655 e\dt
Allianz Global Investors Taiwan Money - Financial assets at FVTPL - current 16,118 201,596 - 201,596 | Note 3
Market Fund
CTBC Hwa-win Money Market Fund - Financial assetsVTPL - current 18,239 200,702 - 20@,70[Note 3
Prudential Financial Money Market Ft - Financid assets at FVTP- curren 12,07( 190,62¢ - 190,62¢ |Note &
Eastspring Investments Well Pool Money - Financial assets at FVTPL - current 11,08[ 150,607 - 150,607 | Note 3
Market Fund
Taishin 1699 Money Market Fund Financial asseBv@PL - current 14,809 200,032 - 200,03Note 3
Taishin Ta-Chong Money Market Fund Financial ssaeFVTPL - current 14,102 200,030 - ,2B0 | Note 3
TCB Taiwan Money Market Fund Financial asseS\&EPL - current 19,716 200,030 - 200,030 oteN3
Capital Money Market Fund Financial assets at FMT current 12,416 200,031 - 200,031 Note
Corporate bond
Ubitus Inc. Financial assets at FVTPL - current 85,288 - 85,288 | Note 9
Common shares
Orient Semiconductor Electronics, Ltd. - Finaneissets at FVTPL - current 7,336 86,569 1.33 86,569 | Note 4
Apacer Technology Inc. - Financial assets at FVTRurrent 10,050 286,425 9.96 286,425 eNot
JAFCO Asia Technology Fund IV L.P. - Financialetssat FVTPL - non-current 1,000 1,134 0.50 1,134 | Note 5
AppWorks Fund | Co., Ltd. - Financial assets afPV - non-current 2,165 27,799 18.75 29,79 Note 5
Aptos Technology Inc. - Financial assets at FVTO@bn-current 1,059 - 1.86 - -
Viva Baseball Co., Ltd. - Financial assets at F\ZTOnon-current Note 6 - 8.33 - -
Adam Elements International Co., Ltd. - Finaneisdets at FVTOCI - non-current 1,71( 20,556 9.0a 20,556 | Note 5
JAFCO Asia Technology Fund VI L.P. - Financialetssat FVTPL - non-current 950 53,097 0.67 53,097 | Note 5
Appworks Fund Il Co., Ltd. - Financial assets ¥TPL - non-current 8,850 214,309 11.11 ,309 | Note 5
Innorich Venture Capital Corp. - Financial ass#tEVTPL - non-current 3,000 20,402 5.61 0,4P2 | Note 5
THLight Co., Ltd. - Financial assets at FVTOCIlonacurrent 6,388 - 17.94 - -
UD INFO Corp - Financial assets at FVTO - nor-curren 57C 33,131 18.1¢ 33,137 |[Note £
GeoThings, Inc. - Financial assets at FVTOCI - non-current 15 - 6.70 - -
(Continued)




-67 -

December 31, 2018
. Marketable Securities Type/ Relationship with the . . . Carrying
Holding Company Name Name and Issuer (Note 1) Holding Company Financial Statement Account Shares or Units| Amount Percentage of Market Value Note
(In Thousands) Ownership (%)
(Note 2)
Ironyun Incorporated (preference shares) - Firdrassets at FVTOCI - non-current 5,00 $ - 925. $ - -
Gospal Ltd. - Financial assets at FVTOCI - non-current 831,8 3,004 3.40 3,004 | Note7
H3 Platform, Inc. - Financial assets at FVTOCbnrturrent 18,400 30,705 12.14 30,706  Note
CAL-COMP INDUSTRIA DE - Financial assets at FVTOCI - non-current 16,96 48,859 17.16 48,859| Note 5
SEMICONDUCTORES S.A.
Gomore Inc. - Financial assets at FVTOCI - non-current 16,92 10,741 6.15 10,741| Note 5
Patriot Memory Asia Headquarter - Financial asae8vVTOCI - non-current 580 16,441 4.33 6,441 | Note 5
Taishan Buffalo Investment Co., Ltd. - Financial assets at FVTPL - non-current 25,000 19,390 1.08 19,390| Note 5
(preference shares)
Private equity fund
Fuh Hwa Smart Energy Fund - Financial assets aHt\- non-current 6,000 47,366 3.81 47,366lote 5
Lian Xu Dong Investment|_Beneficiary certificates
Corporation FSITC Taiwan Money Market Fund - Ficial assets at FVTPL - current 1,986 30,341 - 30,341 | Note 3
Allianz Global Investors Taiwan Money - Financial assets at FVTPL - current 2,424 0,339 - 30,329 | Note 3
Market Fund
Common shares
United Power Research Technology Corp. - Finarsséts at FVTOCI - non-current 5,616 44,394 16.12 44,394 | Note 5
Fresco Logic, Inc. (preference shares) - Finaragaéts at FVTOCI - non-current 1,25 - 2.23 - -
Translink Capital Partners I, L.P. - Financiabkats at FVTPL - non-current 1,440 37,786 811 37,786 | Note 5
Translink Capital Partners IV L.P - Financial assg FVTPL - non-current 300 6,506 0.78 ,506 | Note 5
Liqid, Inc. (preference shares) - Financial asae8vVTOCI - non-current 2,111 98,740 10.92 98,740 | Note 5
UMBO CV Inc. (preference shares) - Financial asaeFVTOCI - non-current 1,626 29,696 3.02 29,696 | Note 8
Omni Media International Incorporati - Financial assets at FVTOt nor-curren 1,71¢ 18,343 4.5¢€ 18,34: |Note ¢
RENIAC, INC. (preference shares) - Financial asaeFVTOCI - non-current 302 15,285 3.46 15,285 | Note 5
Emtops Electronics Beneficiary certificates - o funds
Corporation Allianz Global Investors Taiwan Money - Financial assets at FVTPL - current 81% 190, - 10,194 | Note 3
Market Fund
Franklin Templeton SinoAm Money Market - Financial assets at FVTPL - current 988 209, - 10,202 | Note 3
Fund
Phisontech Electronics Beneficiary certificates
(Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. United Cash Fund - Finanasalets at FVTPL - current 2,410 17,34p - 17,342 | Note 3
Cloud Solution Global Common shares
Limited My Digital Discount, Inc. - Financial ats at FVTOCI - non-current - - 19.00 -
Hefei Core Storage Common shares
Electronic Limited Hangzhou Hualan Microelectigume Co., Ltd - Financial assets at FVTOCI - non-current 3,000 80,496 474 80,496 | Note 7
(Continued)



Note 1: The marketable securities listed refeh#types of financial instruments within the scop&RS 9 “Financial Instruments”.

Note 2: The carrying amount is either the fair eadu the original cost net of allowance loss.

Note 3: The calculation of the market value wastam the net asset value as of December 28, 2018.

Note 4: The calculation of the market value wagtam the closing price as of December 28, 2018.

Note 5: Refer to Note 27 (b)-3 for market valuemfation.

Note 6: The issuing company is not limited by skare

Note 7: The calculation of the market value wastam the most recent buying price.

Note 8: The calculation of the market value wagtam the most recent acquisition price.

Note 9: The calculation of the market value wasbam the expert evaluation report as of Decem®g2@18.

Note 10: The Corporation held marketable securitiashad not been guaranteed, pledged or mortgagedllateral or restricted by other commitments.

(Concluded)
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PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP.

ACQUISITION OF INDIVIDUAL REAL ESTATE AT COSTS OF A T LEAST NT$300 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID-IN CAPITA L

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless State@therwise)

TABLE 2

Beginning Balance Acquisition Disposal Ending Balance (Note)
Type and Name of Financial . . Number of Number of Number of . ) Number of
Company Name Marketable Securities Statement Account] Counterparty | Relationship Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount iarrylng Gag. (Loss)l on Shares Amount
(In Thousands) (In Thousands) (In Thousands) mount Isposa (In Thousands)
Phison Electronic Beneficiary certificate
Corp. Taishin Ta-Chong Money Financial assets at - - 3,594 $ 50,757 21,180 $ 300,00 ,61D $ 151,070 $ 150,000 $ 1,070 14,102 $ 200,030
Market Fund FVTPL - current
Taishin 1699 Money Market |Financial assets at - - - 29,668 400,000 14,859 200 200,000 290 14,809 200,03
Fund FVTPL - current
TCB Taiwan Money Market |Financial assets at - - - 39,497 400,000 19,781 289 200,000 289 19,716 200,03
Func FVTPL - curren

Note: The amounts of beginning and ending balandede the valuation gains or losses on finanostruments.
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TABLE 3

PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP.

TOTAL PURCHASES FROM OR SALES TO RELATED PARTIES AM OUNTING TO AT LEAST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PA ID-IN CAPITAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless State@therwise)

Transaction Details Abnormal Transaction Notes/Accounts
. . Payable or Receivable
Company Name Related Party Nature of Relationship Purchase/ % of Pavment % of Note
Amount Payment Terms Unit Price y Ending Balance 0
Sale Total Terms Total
Phison Electronics CorpKingston Solutions Inc. Equity-method investee dlibsy Purchase $ 673,914 2 |Net 30 days after monthly closing None None $134(248)] (3) -
Toshiba Memory America, Inc. The subsidiary of @@poration’s legalPurchase 4,468,490 16 |Net 30 days after receipt date None None 13 (6) -
entity board of directors
Toshiba Memory Taiwan Corporation The subsididrthe Corporation’s leggPurchase 13,871,206 51 |Net 30 days after monthly closing None Noneg 2,0707,768) (43) -
entity board of directors
Orient Semiconductor Electronics, Lfdihe Corporation is its director Processing 1,439,882 5 |Net 15 days after monthly closing None None 43(844) ()] -
cost
Dawning Leading Technology Ir The Corporation is its direct Processing 318,19: 1 |Net 45 days after monthly closi None None - - | Note
cost
Toshiba Singapore Pte Ltd The associates of adiabswhich is a|Sale (169,870 - |Net 60 days after monthly closing None None - - -
legal entity on the Corporation’s bogrd
of directors
Toshiba Memory Corporation The Corporation’s legyatity board of |Sale (885,227) (2) |Net 60 days after monthly closing None None 95,909 2 -
directors
Apacer Technology Inc. The Corporation is its clioe Sale (613,758) (2) |Net45 days after monthly closing None None 132,734 2 -
Hefei Core Storage Electronic Limitg@ub-subsidiary Sale (265,696) (1) |Net 30 days after monthly closing None None 3,439 - -
Hefei Ruhan Electronic Technology |Sub-subsidiary Sale (103,518) - |Net 30 days after monthly closing None| None| 369 -
Limited
Hefei Core Storage Hefei Ruhan Electronic Technology |Sister company Purchase| 107,194 29 |Net 30 days after monthly closing None None 0,586 56
Electronic Limited Limited

Note: The dissolution of Dawning Leading Technoldgg. was approved in their shareholders’ meetiafgl on August 29, 2018 and the date of merger wass November 1, 2018; thus, starting from NoveniheDawning Leading
Technology Inc. was no longer a related party ef@orporation.
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PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP.

RECEIVABLES FROM RELATED PARTIES AMOUNTING TO AT LE AST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID-IN CAPITAL

DECEMBER 31, 2018
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

TABLE 4

_ ‘ ‘ Overdue R:crzi(\)/lg:jt in Allowa_mce for
Company Name Related Party Relationship Ending Balace| Turnover Rate Amount Action Taken Subsequent Impﬁggnsent
Period (Note)
Phison Electronics Corp. Apacer Technology Inc. Thoeporation is its director $ 132,734 6.66 $ - $ 132,734 $ -

Note: As of March 5, 2019.
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PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP.

INFORMATION OF INVESTEES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED

DECEMBER 31, 2018

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

TABLE 5

Investment Amount Balance as of December 31, 2018
. . : Percentage o Net (Loss) Investment
Investor Investee Location Main Businesses and Prodts| December 31| December 31 Number of Ownershi Carrying |Income of the (Loss) Incom Note
2018 2017 Shares (%) p Amount Investee
Phison Electronics Corp.| Kingston Solutions Inc. iWEa Embedded flash productand| $ 106,050 $ 106,050/ 10,605,000 32.91 $ 1,257,971 $ (402,522) $ (132,470)Equity-method
market development investee
Emtops Electronics Taiwan Sale of flash memory controllg 95,000 95,000 9,500,000 100.00 71,102 944 944 |Subsidiary
Corporation and peripheral system
applications
Lian Xu Dong Investment  [Taiwan Investment 650,000 650,000/ 65,000,000 100.00 484,367 (211) (211)|Subsidiary
Corporation
Microtops Design CorporatiofT aiwan Research and design of flash 22,638 22,638 2,263,800 49.00 22,696 2,313 1,133 |Equity-method
memory controllers and investee
related products
Phison Electronics Japan Cc|Japal Sales and service offi 59,50¢ 28,98: 2,00( 100.0¢ 34,76¢ 17 (17) |Subsidiar
Global Flash Limited Samoa Investment and trade 665,823 665,823| 21,000,000  100.00 628,701 34,684 34,684 |Subsidiary
Phisontech Electronics Malaysia Design, production and sale of 91,422 91,422 10,000,000 100.00 64,275 1,414 1,414 |Subsidiary
(Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. flash memory controllers and
peripheral system
applications
Epostar Electronics (BVI)  |British Virgin Islandginvestment 133,988 133,988| 10,600,000 37.82 17,596 (115,248 (43,587)Equity-method
Corporation investee
Power Flash (Samoa) LimitefSBamoa Investment and trade 105,440 105,440 3,200,000 100.00 101,359 553 553 |Subsidiary
Everspeed Technology Limit&8amoa Trade of electronic components - - 1,000,000 100.00 252,981 112,544 112,544 (Subsidiary
Regis Investment (Samoa) |Samoa Investment 199,332 - 6,700,000 100.00 205,618 769 769 |Subsidiary
Limited
Lian Xu Dong Investmen{Ostek Corporation Taiwan Manufacture and trade of 9,000 9,000 900,000 100.00 52,855 (691) - |Sub-subsidiary
Corporation electronic components
PMS Technology Corporatiofiraiwan Research and design of flash 2,000 2,000 200,000 33.33 17,929 3,936 - |Equity-method
memory controllers and investee
related products
Phisontech Electronics |Phisontech Electronics Taiw#haiwan Design of ASIC and R&D, 10,000 10,000 1,000,000 100.00 41,635 2,880 - |Sub-subsidiary
(Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. Corp. manufacture, and sale of
ASIC for IP and technical
support service
Global Flash Limited Core Storage Electronic  |Samoa Investment and trade 576,229 576,229 18,050,000 100.00 599,958 49,188 - |Sub-subsidiary
(Samoa) Limited
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Investment Amount Balance as of December 31, 2018
Percentage o Net (Loss) Investment
Investor Investee Location Main Businesses and Prodts| December 31| December 31{ Number of Ownersgi Carrying |Income of the (Loss) Incom Note
2018 2017 Shares %) P Amount Investee
Power Flash (Samoa) |Power Flash (HK) Limited Hong Kong Trade of elenimproducts $ 98,754 $ 98,754 3,000,000/ 100.00 $ 95,308 $ 403 $ - |Sub-subsidiary
Limited
Everspeed Technology |Memoryexchange Corporatigaiwan Production and sale of flash 391,986 391,986/ 40,950,000 100.00 116,518 109,154 - |Sub-subsidiary
Limited memory related products
Fast Choice Global Limited | British Virgin Islandsade of electronic components 1,482 1,482 50,000 100.00 2,681 (40) - |Sub-subsidiary
Cloud Solution Global LimitefBritish Virgin IslandsTrade of electronic components 186,963 186,963 5,950,440 100.00 11,984 339 - |Sub-subsidiary
Regis Investment (SamogiReal You Investment Limited Hong Kong Investment 197,760 - 6,650,000 100.00 204,123 845 - |Sub-subsidiary
Limited

-73-

(Concluded)




PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP.

INFORMATION ON INVESTMENTS IN MAINLAND CHINA
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

(In Thousands)

TABLE 6

Accumulated Investment Flows Accumulated _ Accumulated
Outflow of Outflow of Carrying Inward
Total Amount | Method of Investment Investment | Percentage off Investment Amount Remittance of
Investee Company Main Businesses and Producty  of Paid-in  |Investment from Taiwan as Outflow Inflow from Taiwan Ownership | (Loss) Income as of Eamings as of
Capital (Note 1) as of (%) (Note 2) December 31,
of January 1, December 31,
5018 December 31, 2018 2018
2018
Phisontech (Shenzhen) Limited Design, R&D, impod axport $ 53,096 2 $ 53,096 $ - $ $ 53,096 Q0o0. $ (14,830) $ 8,777 $ -
of storage devices and
electronics
Hefei Core Storage Electronic Design, R&D, production and saje 576,780 2 576,780 - 576,78 100.00 49,190 598,892 -
Limited of integrated circuits, systems
and electronics hardware and
software and rendering of
related services
Hefei Ruhan Electronic TechnologyDesign, R&D, sale of electronics 182,825 1 - 182,825 182,825 100.00 703 183,151 -
Limited hardware and rendering of
related services and investment
Hefei Yichao Electronics Technolo{Design, R&D, sale of electronics 185,369 2 - - - 100.00 (1,00 180,133 -
Ltd. hardware and software and
rendering of related services ¢
investment
Hefei Xinpeng Technology Co., LtdDesign, R&D, production and sale 493,570 2 - - - 36.36 (2,043 177,857 -
of integrated circuits and
electronics hardware and
software and rendering of
related services
Accumulated Investments in | Investment Amount Authorized by Limit on Investments
Mainland China as of the Investment Commission, (Note 3)
December 31, 2018 MOEA
$ 812,701 $ 1,220,501 $ 16,147,122
(US$ 25,762) (US$ 39,190)
(Continued)
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Note 1: 1) Indirectly invested in a China-based pany through a company located in a third-regicegi® Investment Limited and its subsidiaries.
2) Indirectly invested in a China-based compamgubh a company located in a third-region, GlobasF Limited and its subsidiaries.

Note 2:  Amount was recognized based on the aufiitadcial statements.

Note 3: The limit of investments in mainland Chinénich is based on Regulations Governing the Apglrot Investments on Technical Corporation in Mamd China, is 60% of the Corporation’s net assktevavhich is $26,911,870 x 60% =
$16,147,122.

(Concluded)
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TABLE 7

PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP.

SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS WITH INVESTEE COMPANIES IN  MAINLAND CHINA, EITHER DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY THRO  UGH A THIRD PARTY, AND THEIR PRICES, PAYMENT TERMS, AND
UNREALIZED GAINS OR LOSSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Transaction Details Abnormal Transaction Notes/ A(E;(;ur;t;er\;ecelvab
Buyer Related Party Relationship Purchase/ % of Y % of Note
Amount 0 Payment Terms Unit Price | Payment Terms | Ending Balance 0
Sale Total Total
Phison Electronics Corp. Hefei Core Storage El@atro |Sub-subsidiary Sale $ 265,696 1 Net 30 days afterthly closing None None $ 3,439 - -
Limited

Hefei Ruhan Electronic Sub-subsidiary Sale 103,518 - Net 30 days aftarthly closing None None 19,360 - -
Technology Limited

Hefei Core Storage Electronig¢iefei Ruhan Electronic Sister company Purchase 107,194 29 Net 30 degyrsnaonthly closing  None None 20,566 56 -
Limited Technology Limited
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